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the changing dynamics of 
the economy and growth in 
infrastructural development 
have necessitated industry 
and academia to develop close 
linkages with the aim of creating 
a synergistic system which will 

result in an employable and skilled engineering workforce. 
at present, in the era of knowledge economy, a productive 
interface between academia and industry is a critical 
requirement. both the sectors have realized the need to 
increase mutual interdependence to bridge the gap between 
academic institutions and corporate bodies ensuring that 
their respective objectives are relevant and contemporary. 
in this context, the institution of engineers (india) has 
planned a series of industry-academia meets on a pan-
india basis. these events will focus on idea generation on 
reorienting and ushering in new pedagogies in engineering 
curriculum such as evolving industry oriented courses, 
imparting engineering education through curated cloud 
based courses and undertake incremental learning with 
involvement of industry partners. the   objective of such 
programmes would be creating an ecosystem to help 
identify employability gaps, provide quantitative and 
qualitative feedback to stakeholders to help bridge the 
employability gap in a constructive manner.

recently, twenty-sixth iei convocation and technicians’/
students’ convention was held on november 03-04, 2018 
at ranchi. the theme of convention was ‘challenges 
and opportunities in sustainable development’ and the 
programme was well attended by dignitaries from industry 
as well as academia. 

the 33rd indian engineering congress will be organized 
on the theme ‘integration of technologies: emerging 
engineering Paradigm’ at udaipur during december 21-23, 
2018. we look forward to your participation in this apex 
activity of the institution.

From the
President’s Desk.....

November 1, 2018

To

All Corporate Members of IEI

The Ninety-ninth Annual General Meeting of The Institution of Engineers (India) will be held at Ananta 
Hotel & Resorts, 1 GST Road, Village – Bujhda, Tehsil Girwa, Kotiyat Road, Udaipur – 313001, 
Rajasthan on 23 Dec 2018 at 1430 hrs.

AGENDA
1.	 To	 confirm	 the	Minutes	 of	 the	 Ninety-eighth	 Annual	 General	Meeting	 held	 on	 23	 Dec	 2017	 at	

Chennai,	already	circulated	in	March	2018	issue	of	IEI	News,	Vol.	67,	No.	12,	Page	6.
2. To receive the Annual Report of the Council and the Audited Accounts of IEI for the year ended on 

March 31, 2018.
3.	 To	receive	the	Report	of	the	Council	on	election	of	the	President	and	also	the	composition	of	the	IEI	

Council for the Session 2018-2019.
4.	 To	appoint	the	Auditors	for	the	year	2018-2019	and	to	fix	their	remuneration.

Maj Gen (Dr) S Bhattacharya, VSM (Retd)
Secretary and Director General

The Institution of Engineers (India)
8	Gokhale	Road,	Kolkata	700	020

Recent Developments in Clean and 
Safe Nuclear Power Generation

International Conference, Hyderabad

Contd. on page 3

Telangana State Centre of the institution organized international conference on the topic 
‘recent developments in clean and safe nuclear Power generation’ under the aegis of 
electrical engineering division board of iei during october 3-5, 2018 at Hyderabad. mr m 
venkaiah naidu, Hon’ble vice President of india, graced the function as the chief guest and 

inaugurated the conference. during his inaugural address, the vice President highlighted 
that people require assured, uninterrupted and quality power instead of free power. ‘rapid 
urbanization and industrialization would increase energy demand and consumption and to 
meet this demand, nuclear power finds a solution since it is cost effective and environment 
friendly’, he added. the chief guest cited examples of tarapore and Kundankulam plants 
which are generating power at 92 paise and rs. 3/- per unit   respectively.   mr naidu referred 
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Jharkhand State Centre of the institution organized the 
twenty-sixth iei convocation and technicians’/students’ 
convention during november 03-04, 2018 at ranchi. the 
theme of convention was ‘challenges and opportunities in 
sustainable development’. chief guest Padamshree Prof 
ajoy Kumar ray and guest-of-Honour mr rajesh agrawal, 
member, rolling stock, railway board delivered their 
convocation address. mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President, 
iei, presided over the function.mr t m gunaraja, President-
elect of iei; mr P rajamani, vice President of iei, Prof t s 
Kamal, chairman, all india technicians’ committee; mr K c 
sethi, chairman, all india students’ committee; mr sanjay 
sen, chairman, organizing committee & chairman of the 
centre, mr m r Kumar, co-chairman, organising committee & Honorary 
secretary of the centre and maj gen (dr) s bhattacharya, vsm (retd), 
secretary & director general of iei, were present on the occasion. mr sen 
welcomed the august gathering. mr banerjee gave his inaugural speech 
followed by the lighting of the lamp by the dignitaries present on the dais. in 
his welcome address, mr banerjee acquainted the gathering with the vision 
of iei to address the professional needs of engineers in the country. He also 
emphasized on creating an eco system of learning which will contribute 
to the continuous Professional development during the entire spectrum of 
professional career of an engineer. He also highlighted that iei being an 
apex body of engineers, is committed to holistic development and have 
planned to set up an iei learning hub through which corporate members 
can avail world class digital learning for upgrading of skills and knowledge. 
He thanked the chief guest and guest-of-Honour for sparing their valuable 
time to be present on the occasion. Prof ray, in his address complimented 
iei for encouraging professional engineers, academicians and research 

workers and providing a vast array of technical and professional expertise. 
He also appealed to the engineering students to adapt the changes and 
keep themselves equipped with new technologies and industries. during 
his speech, Prof ray expressed concern over environmental degradation 
and pollution affecting health of the future generation and enlightened 
the students with the fact that embracing carbon sequestration might 
play an important part in keeping greenhouse gas emissions out of the 
atmosphere. He also shared his practical experience in various research 
areas in the power sector. mr agrawal delivered a very motivating speech 
to the graduate engineers and encouraged them to become experts in their 
respective fields. in his speech, mr agrawal evoked the student members 
to create the future and make the world a better place to live in, to aspire 
to become entrepreneurs and job creators rather than job seekers. the 
programme ended with a vote of thanks by the secretary & director general 
of iei. the programme was well attended with overwhelming response from 
the graduating students and others.

Twenty-sixth IEI Convocation and 
Technicians’/Students’ Convention held at Jharkhand

Waste Management for 
Sustainable Development

Berhampur Local Centre of the institution in collaboration with Parala 
maharaja engineering college (Pmec), berhampur organized all india 
seminar on ‘waste management for sustainable development’ under the 
aegis of chemical engineering division board of iei during august 17-18, 
2018 at berhampur. dr ranjan Kumar swain, Principal, Pmec, graced the 
occasion as the chief Patron of the function. dr swain, in his speech briefed 
about the need of organizing such events and boosted the engineering 
students and the budding engineers to find out the cost effective and eco-
friendly techniques towards safe disposal of wastes. mr sushanta Kumar 
mishra, Joint commissioner, odisha urban Housing mission, graced 
the occasion as the chief speaker. mr mishra, in his speech elaborated 
about the causes of accumulation of pollutants and the related adverse 
consequences. He further highlighted various techniques and methods in 
connection with the preventive measures aiming to eradicate the negative 
impacts of the pollutions on environment. on this occasion, mr ram 
dahin sao, Head, technical, grasim industries ltd., ganjam chemical 
division was present as guest-of-Honour. mr sao highlighted about the 
role of engineers and the engineering techniques in optimizing the wastes, 
without further supplementation of hazardous gases to the atmosphere. 
the chief guest of the function, dr suresh chandra dalai, mission director, 

odisha urban Housing mission, in his address, requested all the delegates 
and the engineering students to make the society aware of the aim and 
objective of this particular seminar. during the inaugural function a souvenir 
embracing the theme and sub-themes of the topic was released by the 
chief guest in presence of the invited guests. earlier, mr ashutosh Patra, 
chairman of the centre welcomed all the delegates and the distinguished 
dignitaries presented offerings on the subject matter of the seminar briefly. 
the convener of the seminar, dr Himadri sahu, Head of the department 
of chemical engineering, Pmec, introduced the dignitaries and brief of the 
theme of the seminar. mr sanjaya Kumar moharana, Honorary secretary 
of the centre proposed vote of thanks. a large number of participants were 
present during various technical sessions of the program.
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Nagpur Local Centre of the institution organized the thirty-fourth national 
convention of civil engineers and national seminar on the theme “recent 
advances in infrastructure development” under the aegis of civil engineering 
division board (cvdb), iei, during september 8-9, 2018 at nagpur. the 
chief guest of the convention, mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President of the 

Recent Advances in Infrastructure 
Development

Thirty-fourth National Convention of Civil Engineers, Nagpur

surve, executive director, vidarbha irrigation development corporation, 
water resources department, nagpur; Prof anjan dutta, department of civil 
engineering, iit guwahati; Prof Prem Krishna, former Head, department of 
civil engineering, university of roorkee; dr manamohan r Kalgal, former 

vice President – Head, building Products & technical services, 
ultratech cement ltd.; mr dip Kishore sen, director & senior 
executive vice President (infrastructure), larsen & toubro ltd. 
were felicitated for their immense contributions in the profession 
of civil engineering. the Keynote address was delivered by Prof 
mahesh tandon, managing director, tandon consultants Pvt. ltd., 
new delhi on “techniques for metro rail construction in india”. 
on this occasion, Prof K v l subramaniam, department of civil 
engineering, iit Hyderabad, mr chetan raikar, managing director, 
structwel designer consultants Pvt. ltd., mumbai, mr Kaizad 
engineer, technical director, ushta infinity construction company 
Pvt. ltd., mr vivek naik, chairman and managing director, 
apple chemie ltd., nagpur and other dignitaries were present 
and highlighted various current challenges of insfrastructural 
development in the country. for the outstanding contribution in 
the field of civil engineering, dr debarghya chakraborty, assistant 

Professor, department of civil engineering, iit Kharagpur; dr sanket nayak, 
assistant Professor, department of civil engineering, iit (indian school of 
mines) dhanbad; dr d naveen b P, associate Professor, department of civil 
engineering, amity school of engineering & technology, amity university, 
gurgaon have been felicitated as iei Young engineers awardees. earlier, dr 
d P mase, chairman of the institution, welcomed the august gathering. in 
his address, dr mase highlighted that good communication, good roads, 
good resources etc. are the prime concern of infrastructual development. 
the organising secretary of the event, mr satish raipure briefed about 
the theme of the convention. the vote of thanks was presented by mr m 
a Pathak, Honorary secretary of the centre. a large number of technical 
papers embracing the theme of the convention were presented and 
discussed during technical sessions.

iei emphasized the need for acquiring and implementing the advances for 
future benefits to people. He also highlighted the advancement in ict for the 
benefit of civil engineering, extensive advancements in constructions and 
surveying technologies, Project Planning, metro planning etc. mr banerjee 
focused on the probable collaboration with industrial bodies and corporate 
houses at large level to enhance the skill level of engineering students to 
make them industry ready. on this occasion, mr n b vasoya, immediate 
Past President of iei was the guest-of-Honour. mr vasoya focused on the 
gujarat model of infrastructure where massive development took place. the 
vice President of iei, mr v s ghogare spoke about the modern development 
on infrastructure in the country. during the function, mr s l garg, Past 
President of iei was the special guest. dr H o thakare, chairman, civil 
engineering division board (cvdb) of iei briefed about the convention and 
focused on the background of the institution along with its various types of 

Recent Developments in Clean and 
Safe Nuclear Power Generation

to the contribution of dr Homi J bhabha to the development of nuclear energy.  
He   emphasized   on the need to improve afforestation and green cover in 
the country.   the chief guest further stated that to eliminate the carbon 
foot prints and global warming associated with the conventional method 
of power generation, nuclear power plant is the most feasible alternative. 
the guest-of-Honour, dr r chidambaram, former Principal scientific 
advisor, goi, Homi bhabha Professor, barc, mumbai elaborately explained 
about the need of the nuclear power and opined  that nuclear power will 
grow by leaps and bounds in years to come. mr nayani narasimha reddy, 
Hon’ble Home minister, govt of telangana graced the conference with his 
august presence. mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President, iei, in his Presidential 
address, emphasized upon the use of nuclear power to mitigate the effect 
of global warming and climate change. President further highlighted the 

of the hour as that will help them in obtaining the Professional engineering 
& international Professional engineers certification by iei. mr t m gunaraja, 
President elect, iei, in his speech appreciated the effort put by the host 
centre for organizing the conference in befitting manner and stated that 
the centre should organize more activities for which all the support will 
be extended. earlier, dr s satyanarayana, chairman of iei, telangana state 
centre, in his welcome address mentioned that the state centre is actively 
participating in providing solutions to various contemporary issues faced 
by the society and offering constructive suggestions to the policy makers.  
He further highlighted that telangana state centre provided suggestions 
to government on various issues like free power to farmers, bolakpur – 
Kavadiguda storm water floods, prevention of leakages and losses in 
the power sector, Hyderabad drainage and drinking water problems and 
many more. dr g rameshwar rao, Honorary secretary of the host centre 
proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the function.

Contd. from page 1

transition of iei to digital era through implementation of 
digital learning materials for students, idea generation  
scheme ‘ideathon’ and life long digital learning Portal for 
the members of iei which will enable them to enhance their 
contribution towards continuous Professional development 
(cPd). He stressed that maintaining a healthy cPd is need 

events being organised throughout the country. the prestigious 
“Prof Jai Krishna memorial lecture” was delivered by Prof 
Prem Krishna, former Head, department of civil engineering, 
university of roorkee on the topic, “growth of civil engineering 
and infrastructure is synonymous”. during the momentous 
occasion, eminent civil engineers, namely, mr avinash v 



The 51st Engineers’ Day was celebrated by the Institution all over the country on September 15, 2018 to 
commemorate the 158th birth anniversary of legendary Engineer-Statesman Bharat Ratna Sir M Visvesvaraya. 

Brief accounts of the celebration as received from various Centres are highlighted hereunder.

51st Engineers’ Day
Theme: Digital Transformation: A New Industrial Revolution

IEI Celebrates

STATE CENTRES

Andaman & Nicobar

the chief guest, dr mylswamy 
annadurai, former distinguished 
scientist & director, chandrayan 
& satellite tracking centre, isro, 
bengaluru highlighted on satellites 
and how it is impacting the lives 

of the common people. ‘starting from agriculture, water resources, 
Harnessing sea wealth, weather Prediction, gis applications, tele-
medicine, tele–education, forestry etc., every sector is benefitted from the 
satellite’, he added. dr annadurai also focused on the making of a satellite 
in which all branches of engineering have an important role to play. earlier, 
mr d sathyamoorthy, chairman of the centre welcomed the guests and 
dignitaries. dr shrabani mallick, committee member of centre proposed the 
vote of thanks.

Andhra Pradesh

dr P udaya bhaskar, chairman, 
andhra Pradesh Public service 
commission graced the occasion 
as chief guest and addressed the 
gathering. the Keynote speaker, 
dr Kranthi Kumar elineni, in his 
speech, stated that as technological advances are happening exponentially, 
solutions to problems push the boundaries of existing technologies. ‘a 
point is reached when the existing technologies cannot be adopted as is 
and thus giving rise to a new industrial revolution’, he added. He further 
continued that the first industrial revolution happened with the advent of 
mechanization, steam power and weaving loom while the second consisted 
of mass production on assembly line and utilization of electrical energy. 
dr elineni also explained that with the advent of integrated circuits, third 
industrial revolution happened; enabling robotics, automation, computers 
and electronics and now this is at the brink of fourth industrial revolution 
in which the digital transformation is leading to industry 4.0 enabled by 
networking. earlier, mr g v srinivasulu, immediate Past Honorary secretary 
of the center welcomed the gathering while dr K P rama rao, chairman 
of the center presided over the function. mr m seshagiri rao, Honorary 
secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Assam

the chief guest, mr v s bhasakar, additional chief secretary to the govt. 
of assam mentioned that now the 
common people have become it 
empowered and many states of 
india are implementing the concept 
of digital transformation in faster 
ways to have more and more 

visible impact on the life style of common people. He further informed the 

house about steps taken by the govt. of assam for spreading it enabled 
services among its people every village of assam is being tried to make an 
access point for internet connectivity. the Keynote speaker, dr sunandan 
baruah, director, centre of excellence, nano technology, assam don bosco 
university, guwahati in his address, presented a crystal clear picture on 
how the digital transformation is causing a revolutionary impact on the life 
style of common men and cited a number of practical examples to visualize 
the situation. dr baruah further informed the house about research works 
being carried out on digital transformation all over the world. earlier, mr 
amitava nath, Honorary secretary of the centre welcomed the gathering. dr 
aswini Kumar barua, chairman of the centre also addressed the gathering. 
mr mahesh barkataky, immediate Past Honorary secretary of the centre 
presented a picture on the life and contribution of sir m visvesvarya. finally, 
mr amitava nath proposed the vote of thanks.

Chhattisgarh

dr m K verma, vice chancellor, 
chhattisgarh swami vivekananda 
technical university, bhilai graced 
the occasion as chief guest and 
addressed the gathering. the guest-
of-Honour and Keynote speaker, 
mr s m despande, chief engineer 
& Head (technical), chhattisgarh 
renewable energy development agency, govt. of chhattisgarh, raipur, in 
his address, informed that science has brought a classic change in the life 
of human being and engineering can be termed as ‘a branch of applied 
science’. He further narrated that changes in the engineering profession and 
engineering education have followed changes in technology and society by 
addition in various branches of disciplines were added and curricula were 
created to meet the critical challenges in society on technology front and to 
provide the welfare required to integrate new development into the economy. 
earlier, mr J P saboo, chairman of the centre welcomed the function. mr 
v K basu, Past chairman of the centre presented a life sketch of sir m 
visvesvaraya.

Gujarat

mr bharat singh Patel, council member, iei spoke on the theme of the 
day. other dignitaries present on the occasion included mr sanjay desai, 
director & ceo, rbd engineers Pvt. ltd., mr vineet Parikh, director, Pima 
controls Pvt. ltd. and mr ruchit surati, ceo and co-founder, locanix 
from different fields took active part and represented their views in the 

Panel discussion organized on the 
day. earlier, mr sandip b vasava, 
chairman of the centre welcomed 
all delegates present in the function 
on this auspicious day and briefed 
about the importance of celebration 

of the day. mr H u Kalyani, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed vote 
of thanks.
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Haryana

Prof ganeshi lal, Hon’ble governor 
of odisha graced the occasion as 
chief guest. mr subhash sudha, 
member of legislative assembly, 
thanesar (Kurukshetra), mr arun 
saraf, chairman, Haryana state 
forest development corporation, 

Prof tankeshwar Kumar, vice-chancellor, gJ university, Hisar, Prof dinesh 
aggarwal, vice-chancellor, Ymca university, faridabad and Prof b K 
Punia, vice-chancellor, maharishi dayanand university, rohtak graced the 
occasion guests-of-Honour. dr m P gupta, advisor, technology education 
and research integrated institute, Kurukshetra, welcomed the dignitaries. 
mr K c sethi, council member, iei, highlighted in details the contribution 
and achievements made by sir m visvesvaraya. Prof satish Kumar, director, 
nit Kurukshetra, in his keynote address stated that digital transformation 
influenced all sectors of the industrial economy. mr ajay mahajan, chairman 
of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Himachal Pradesh

the guest and Keynote speaker, 
dr meenakshi sood, department 
coordinator, electronics and 
communication engineering, 
Jaypee university of information, 
waknaghat, solan, in her address, 
highlighted about the advent of the 4th industrial revolution, digital 
revolution- digitization vs digitalization, artificial intelligence and its future 
Perspectives. she further elaborated that today’s emerging technologies will 
have a similar effect on our society as water power and steam engines had at 
the end of the 19th century. ‘the 4th industrial revolution makes three major 
changes such as intellectualization of human and machine, virtualization 
of reality & virtual and hyper connection of human & things’, she added. 
she explained that industry 4.0- connects the internet of things (iot) with 
manufacturing techniques, enable systems to share information, analyze it 
and use it to guide intelligent actions, incorporates cutting-edge technologies 
like robotics, artificial intelligence and other cognitive technologies. mr 
suneel grover, council member, iei and managing director, HP state load 
dispatch centre, shimla after welcoming all present, elaborated how this 
development took place starting from the 1st industrial revolution (industry 
1.0) in 18th century by mechanization through steam engine, 2nd industrial 
revolution (industry 2.0) in 19-20th century by mass production through 
electric energy, 3rd industrial revolution (industry 3.0) in late 20th century 
by intelligent information revolution through computer and internet and 
4th industrial revolution (industry 4.0) in 21st century through internet of 
things , cloud, big data, artificial intelligence and mobiles etc. mr vishwa 
mohan, Honorary secretary of the centre conducted the function. mr s n 
Kapur, Past chairman of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Jammu & Kashmir

mr Khurshid a ganai, advisor to Hon’ble governor of Jammu & Kashmir 
graced the occasion as chief guest. mr ganai, in his address, highlighted 
how to promote iei through professionalism in the state and engineers 
would get a platform for exchange of ideas, keeping them abreast with latest 
developments in their respective fields of engineering.

Kerala

mr satish babu, President, inapp, technopark, thiruvananthapuram 
delivered the theme lecture. earlier, 
mr n rajkumar, chairman of the 
centre welcomed the gathering and 
introduced the speaker. mr v vijaya 
Kumar, Past chairman of the centre 
narrated the life sketch of sir m 

visvesvaraya. a special lecture on ‘Kuttanad reconstruction / rehabilitation 
activities after recent flood’ was delivered by dr n n Panicker, sahajivan 
swaraj. mr K s udaya Kumar, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed 
the vote of thanks.

Manipur

the chief guest, mr Karan shyam, 
Hon’ble minister for caf & Pd, 
revenue, weights & measures and 
relief & rehabilitation highlighted the 
importance of engineers in nation 
building activities and stressed 
upon the need of enhancing the 
quality of construction in  the state. 
He further expressed his desire to 

extend cooperation to the fraternity of engineers in the state and help in the 
process of land acquisition for the centre. earlier, mr chirom dharmkumar 
singh, Past Honorary secretary of the centre welcomed the gathering. mr 
K temba singh, chairman of the centre presided over the function. dr Kh 
Johnson singh, assistant Professor, department of computer science & 
engineering, nit manipur delivered the theme lecture. mr n shyamsundar 
singh, former chairman, Joint electricity regulatory commission (manipur 
& mizoram) also spoke on the theme embracing many important points. 
mr th Joykumar singh, former chief engineer, Pwd manipur, stressed 
upon the immediate need of acquiring of land for the state centre. mr th 
subhaschandra singh of nit manipur proposed the vote of thanks.

Telangana

mr b P acharya, director general, 
mcr Hrd institute & special 
chief secretary to government of 
telangana graced the occasion as 
chief guest. mr acharya paying 
rich tributes to sir m visvesvaraya, 
stated that a grateful nation would 
remember this great son of india 
with admiration and gratitude. He further highlighted that the growth 
of engineering graduates are enhancing day by day, but due to lack of 
skills, many young engineers still facing unemployment. ‘engineers play a 
dominant role in the development of national and engineers should adopt 
innovative technologies for the progress of the nation’, he added. mr m b 
Praveen Kumar, director (technical), Hyderabad metropolitan water supply 
and sewerage board, Hyderabad, in his address said that sir visvesvaraya 
was a professional personified, a role model to emulate a leader with 
values and finally a personality endowed with high values in life. earlier, 
dr g rameshwar rao, Honorary secretary of the centre welcomed the 
gathering. dr s satyanarayana, chairman of the centre presided over the 
meeting. the programme concluded with the vote of thanks proposed by dr 
K v n s v P l narasimham, committee member of the centre.

Uttar Pradesh

the chief guest, mr brijesh Pathak, Hon’ble minister of law, Justice, non 
conventional energy and Political Pension, govt. of uP, in his address 
called upon the engineers to follow the ideals of sir m visvesvaraya for 

contribution in the development 
of the nation so that india could 
become one of the developed 
countries of the world. the Keynote 
speaker, mr s K Pandey, senior 
scientist of indian space research 
organization (isro), elaborated 

on the ongoing digital transformation and its impact on the society. He 
explained how big data, cloud computing, internet of things (iot), artificial 
intelligence (ai), robotics, 3d Printing and industry 4.0 are changing 
the life style. distinguished guest, mr b s tiwary, director technical, uP 
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rajya vidyut utpadan nigam ltd., informed the audience regarding digital 
transformation being used in thermal Power stations of the state for better 
plant load factor and improvement of overall performance. earlier, dr bharat 
raj singh, chairman of the centre, while welcoming the guests explained 
how digital transformation and space technology can be used in making 
essential service available in far off places of the country. mr a K gupta, 
Past chairman of the centre threw light on the life sketch and achievements 
of sir m visvesvarya. mr r K trivedi, Honorary secretary of the centre 
proposed the vote of thanks.

West Bengal

the chief guest, Prof Parthasarathi 
chakrabarti, director, indian 
institute of engineering science and 
technology (iiest), shibpur, stated 
that industries around the world are 
now facing substantial challenges 
due to recent environmental, societal, economic and technological 
development regarding disruptive concepts of internet of things, cyber 
Physical systems or cloud based manufacturing, which lead to the 
fourth stage of industrial revolution. ‘increased digitization which waves 
out traditional and conventional production concepts including mass 
production, batch production, continuous process flow and project is the 
need of the hour’, he added. He further continued that after the first industrial 
revolution where water and steam power was utilized for mechanizing 
production, during second industrial revolution, application of power was 
the priority to obtain mass production and during third industrial revolution, 
industrial automation was introduced. Prof chakrabarti further narrated 
that now the fourth industrial revolution, termed as industry 4.0 which is 
empowered by wide range of digital technology not only in digital realm, 
which involves artificial intelligence, machine learning, advanced robotics 
and new formation of automation, but also in physical realm including new 
materials like grapheme, genetic advances as well as biological realm which 
involves sensors, internet of things, block chain and distributed ledgers, 
3d Printing, autonomous vehicles like drones, so on and so forth. earlier, mr 
Kashmir lal mallik, chairman of the centre delivered the welcome address.  
mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President, iei presented a about the importance of 
engineers’ day. the life sketch of bharat ratna sir m visvesvaraya was read 
by Prof n r bandyopadhyay, dr m n dastur school of materials science 
and engineering, iiest, shibpur. mr ranjan dutta, Honorary secretary of the 
centre proposed the vote of thanks.

LoCAL CENTRES

Agra

mr devendra singh chaudhary, former chief engineer graced the occasion 
as chief guest. mr a s sharma, dgn, bsnl, agra explained about 
the digital transformation in the area of communication from manual 

telephone exchanges to digital 
automatic telephone exchanges, 
mobile phone, whatsapp, facebook 
and other digital media. Prof d K 
chaturvedi, dayalbagh educational 
institute, agra highlighted about the 

digital revolution and its effects. ‘due to digitization mobile towers, we see 
lot of magnetic field generated around us and natural things disturb’, he 
added. mr d s chaudhary, immediate Past chairman of the centre narrated 
about sir m visvesvaraya and about the theme of the day. dr a b lal from 
the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Allahabad

the chief guest, mr sidharth nath 
singh, Hon’ble minister, govt. 
of uttar Pradesh called upon the 
engineers to make a resolution of 

using their creative energy towards the progress of our country. He further 
made the engineers awareness of their responsibility towards making the 
country a big power on the global platform. the guest-of-Honour, mr m 
m bhatia, chief engineer, indian air force, in his address enriched the 
knowledge of audience on the theme of the day. earlier, mr b n sharan, 
chairman of the center welcomed the chief guest and other dignitaries 
present on the occasion. mr awdhesh Kumar, Honorary secretary of the 
center proposed the vote of thanks.

Alwar

mr sunil gupta, additional chief 
engineer, Pwd, govt. of rajasthan 
graced the occasion as chief guest. 
mr gupta, in his address, praised the 
engineers for their role in developing 
the nation. mr manohar lal Yadav, 
chairman of the centre delivered the welcome address and presided over 
the function. mr K l sharma, Past chairman of the centre spoke on the 
theme of the day. other dignitaries present on the occasion included mr r 
l aggarwal, wing commander mangal singh and all others highlighted the 
achievements of sir m visvesvaraya. mr devi singh, chief organizer of the 
event extended the vote of thanks.

Anantapuram

mr Y appa rao, superintendent engineer, aP transco, anantapuram graced 
the occasion as chief guest and hailed the services of the great engineer 

statesman, sir m visvesvaraya. mr 
P narasimha siva teja, committee 
member of the centre welcomed the 
gathering. a lecture was delivered by 
Prof c shoba bindu, department of 
computer science & engineering and 
coordinator, software development 
centre, Jntua anantapuramu. mr K 

Hema chandra reddy, Past chairman of the centre presented a life sketch 
of sir m visvesvaraya. Prof c sashidhar, chairman of the centre proposed 
the vote of thanks.

Angul

the chief guest, dr tapan Kumar 
chand, chairman & managing 
director, national aluminium 
company (nalco) highlighted the 
fact that industries like, nalco 
have to adopt different facets of industry 4.0 at the earliest in order to 
remain globally competitive besides improving upon their productivity 
& efficiency. dr chand further mentioned the gruesome challenge of 
dealing with unemployment that would result because of higher extent of 
automation across different sectors. the chief speaker, dr ganapati Panda, 
former deputy director, iit bhubaneswar enumerated the myriad areas 
where digital transformation is helping the mankind and also the world of 
possibilities that is in store for us in near future courtesy this new industrial 
revolution. the guest-of-Honour, mr r K mishra, executive director (s&P) 
in his speech threw light on the evolution of science & technology right from 
the first industrial revolution to the current world of digital transformation. 
He also stressed on the fact that industries like, nalco will reap rich 
dividends by adopting the state of the art automation methodologies across 
their shop floors. earlier, mr s K dogra, chairman of the centre welcomed 
the guests and dignitaries while mr satyabadi mishra, Honorary secretary 
of the centre gave brief introductions of the esteemed guests besides giving 
a brief synopsis of the numerous events carried out in the centre last year. 
mr sibaram Panda proposed the vote of thanks. 
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Anpara

the chief guest, mr r K sitani, Plant 
Head, grasim industries, Hindalco 
group, renukot appealed to the 
engineering fraternity to follow the 
path laid down by the great engineer 
& statesman, sir m visvesvaraya. 
He called upon the technical experts 
to work for the betterment by setting 
up a task force and mutual sharing of their knowledge. mr deepak Kumar, 
general manager, anpara thermal Power station and mr rabin sarkar, 
general manager, lanco Power, anpara graced the occasion as guests-of-
Honour. mr sandeep Kumar mishra delivered the keynote address on the 
theme, which dealt with the detailed account of various issues concerned 
with the appropriate engineering responsive technology inclusively. earlier, 
mr u c mishra, chairman of the centre welcomed the august gathering. mr 
mukesh Kumar singh, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote 
of thanks.

Asansol

the chief guest, mr a dasgupta, 
chief executive officer, sail-isP, 
burnpur highlighted some anecdotes 
of sir m visvesvaraya’s life, 
portraying his sincerity and honesty. 
speaking on theme, mr dasgupta 
stated that in the present day’s 
context, new generation industries 
like, sail-isP where state-of-the-art 

technology is in place, there is abundant availability of field data captured 
through level ii or level iii automation application but engineers have to 
make good use of those captured data by proper analysis in determining 
process flow and appropriate process control measures. ‘these modern 
machineries are never the less very sensitive and calls for utmost care in 
handling to achieve desired results’, he added. the guest-of-Honour, mr P 
K mishra, divisional railway manager asansol enunciated the engineering 
industrial revolution in the world as a whole. He enumerated on different 
basic elements like data capturing, data integrity, analysis and synthesis of 
field data and their meaningful transformation in decision making in process 
industries in the context of digital transformation. He further emphasized 
that to remain competitive industry has to adapt to digitalization as a way of 
life. the special guest, mr c s sinha, executive director (P&a), sail-isP-
burnpur mentioned  that the life story of sir m visvesvaraya will definitely 
encourage all the engineers to dedicate their services in nation building. 
earlier, mr K v r raju, chairman of the centre welcomed the gathering. mr 
t t lahiri, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Auangabad

Hon’ble mr Haribhau bagade (nana), speaker, maharashtra state legislative 
assembly graced the occasion as 
chief guest and presided over the 
function. mr P l Kokil, managing 
director, sanjay techno Plast Pvt. 
ltd., aurangabad delivered the 
keynote address on the theme. mr 
a P Kohirkar, executive director, 
godavari marathwada irrigation development corporation (gmidc), 
aurangabad, mr K t Patil, chief engineer, Pw region, auangabad and mr 
suresh ganeshkar, chief engineer, msedc, aurangabad graced the event 
as guests-of-Honour. dr sudhir d deshmukh, chairman of the centre 
presented the detailed information regarding the activities of the centre. mr 
a K sasane, Honorary secretary of the centre briefed the life sketch of sir 
m visveshvarayya. the programme was concluded with the vote of thanks 
proposed by mr K m sayyad, committee member of the centre.

Barauni

mr r c rai, deputy general 
manager-cum-esc (tech), barauni 
thermal Power station (btPs), 
begusarai graced the occasion as 
chief guest and garlanded in the 
portrait of sir m visvesvaraya. mr 
rai delivered lecture on the theme of the day. other dignitaries namely, mr 
s K singh, chairman & mr niraj Kumar singh, Honorary secretary of the 
centre were also present. mr ravi bhushan & mr shadabul Hashan from 
eee, btPs graced the occasion with their august presence and spoke on 
the theme of the day.

Bareilly

mr r K chopra, vice President, Kribhco fertilizer, shajhanpur and mr 
rajeev swami, superintendent engineering, Pwd, bareilly graced the 
occasion as chief guest and guest-of-Honour respectively. mr b r dutta, 

dean academy, ana college, 
bareilly mentioned that the digital 
transformation is the key for 
industrial revolution 4.0. mr Hemant 
Yadav, director, Prem Prakash 
gupta institute of engineering & 

management, bareilly expressed that an organization has to align to digital 
transformation considering all aspects. mr shivanshu Pathak, deputy 
manager (inst.) Kribhco fertilizer ltd., shahjanapur explained that  the 
industrial internet of things originally described the iot (internet of things) 
as it is used across several industries such as manufacturing, logistics, 
oil and gas, transportation, energy/ utility, mining and metals, aviation 
and other industrial sectors and in use cases which are typical to these 
industries. mr vishal sharma & mr shivang gupta, rajshree institution of 
group, bareilly explained that the new paradigm is the convergence of a 
digital communication internet, a digital renewable energy internet, a digital 
automated transportation and logistics internet, to create a super-internet of 
things infrastructure. earlier, mr subhash mishra, chairman of the centre 
welcomed the gathering. dr Pankaj sharma, Honorary secretary of the 
centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Dhanbad

the chief guest, mr shashi ranjan, deputy development commissioner, 
dhanbad, in his speech emphasized 
that benefit of digital transformation 
has reaching to the public even 
in the remote area and general 
public is aware of their right of the 
facilities being forwarded by the 
government administration. the guest-of-Honour, mr r n singh, deputy 
director general (mechanical) HQ, dgms, dhanbad, highlighted the role 
of the digital transformation in improving the benefits by the public to give 
maximum advantages by creating transformation in the country. mr H n 
Karmakar, Past chairman of the centre delivered speech on the theme of the 
day. earlier, dr s K singh, chief scientist, csir- central institute of mining 
and fuel research, dhanbad delivered welcome address. dr t n singh, 
Past chairman of the centre presided over the function and delivered the 
address. dr K K singh, Honorary secretary of the centre presented a life 
sketch of sir m visvesvaraya and proposed the vote of thanks at the end of 
the programme.

Durgapur

the chief guest, mr a r dasgupta, 
executive director (Projects), sail- 
durgapur steel Plant highlighted 
that sir m visvesvaraya was 
internationally popular civil engineer 
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for his brilliance and his great achievement in harnessing water resources in 
india. He further narrated that industrial revolution has started from industry 
1.0 to the present industrial revolution 4.0 and nine pillars of industrial 
revolution 4.0. i.e. simulation, additive manufacturing, cyber security, 
cloud computing, internet of things, big data, autonomous robots, system 
integration & augmented reality. Prof n K roy, department of electrical 
engineering, nit durgapur and dr d v rajan, superintending engineer, 
damodar valley corporation, durgapur steel thermal Power station, andal 
graced the occasion as guests-of-Honour and addressed the gathering. 
earlier, mr r K roy, chairman of the centre, in his welcome address, 
recalled the life time achievements of sir m visvesvaraya and urged the 
engineers to come forward to take necessary steps to make digital india. mr 
m n bandyopadhyay, Honorary secretary of the centre, in his introductory 
address stated that digitalization is essential in our day to day activities for 
our daily life and also it is essential for our industrial revolution 4.0. He also 
proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the function.

Fariadabad

mr balraj Joshi, chairman & managing director, nHPc ltd. graced the 
occasion as chief guest of the function and shared the experiences 
in his organization related to 
special efforts made in the field 
of digitization. mr m l sharma, 
chairman, glen appliances Pvt. 
ltd. and mr m P rungta, chairman 
& managing director, cosmos fibre glass Pvt. ltd. graced the occasion 
as guests-of-Honour of the function. mr bhatia shared his experiences 
ganization related to special efforts made in the field of digitization. mr 
rungta also addressed the gathering highlighted various aspects of 
digital transformation in industry. earlier, mr subhash chander, chairman 
of the centre, while delivering the welcome address stated that today’s 
deliberations on the subject shall help delegates acquire additional skills 
on digitization and to bring in improvements in their respective work areas. 
the Honorary secretary of the centre, mr sandeep Handa, in his thematic 
speech, stated that engineering is the professional art of applying science to 
the optimum conversion of natural resources to the benefit of man. ‘there is 
no room for complacency in the fast moving digital world. the only wrong 
move when it comes to digital transformation is not to make any move 
at all’, he opined. mr J P singh, immediate Past chairman of the centre 
proposed the vote of thanks.

Ghaziabad

the chief guest mr vijaya singh, former general manager, indian railways 
& former managing director, tata Projects ltd. analyzed the role of digital 

transformation in daily life especially 
in rural and middle sector of the 
society and put forward various 
challenges in its implementation. He 

further dealt upon its impact on rural economy. the guest-of-Honor, mr m K 
seth, its chief general manager, advanced level telecom training centre, 
ghaziabad narrated various forms of digital transformation and explained 
each one of them by citing practical examples. the Keynote speaker, Prof r 
P maheshwari, director, raj Kumar goel institute of technology highlighted 
about the digital transformation and its meaning, usefulness and explained 
how to bring comfort and change in the quality of life. mr r r tanwar, 
council member and chairman of electrical engineering division board, iei 
presented a brief account of various activities of iei and exhorted all to 
take advantage of them. earlier, Prof H s sharma, chairman of the centre, 
welcoming the guests highlighted the contribution of sir m visvesvarya in 
the development of nation and also spoke about the usefulness of digital 
transformation for the advancement and prosperity of the nation. Prof s c 
gupta, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks. 

Gorakhpur

mr rohit singh sajwan, superintendent of Police, north gorakhpur, graced 
the occasion as chief guest. the Keynote speaker, dr sanjay mishra, 
associate Professor, madan mohan malviya university of technology, 

gorakhpur explained, in details, 
the term digital transformation 
and deliberated how in the last 
decades the digital transformation 

has revolutionized the every aspect of human life. He described how an 
organization/ industry can transform itself by adopting various digital 
technologies like artificial intelligence, cloud computing, sensor technology 
and internet etc. dr mishra further emphasized on the various challenges the 
company has to face for restructuring the organizations and implementing 
new regulations while transforming to digital ecosystem. special guest 
on the occasion, mr Jyoti Prakash maskara, director, mahabir Jute mills 
(mJm), gorakhpur and President of chamber of industries, gorakhpur 
mentioned that mJm gorakhpur is the only jute mill in uttar Pradesh, bihar 
and madhya Pradesh running successfully for more than eight decades. 
being very close to machine and human, he expressed some fear from 
digitalization of industries or digital transformation in industries. earlier, mr 
v K srivastava, Honorary secretary of the centre welcomed the gathering. 
mr m w beg, chairman of the center highlighted the theme of the day. mr 
satish singh, Past Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of 
thanks.

Indore

dr rakesh saxena, director, sgits 
indore graced the occasion as chief 
guest and addressed the gathering. 
mr shailendra gupta, avP, Yash 
technologies, indore, graced the 
occasion as guest speaker. dr 
Prashant bansod, chairman of the 
centre delivered the welcome speech and threw light on the background 
of engineers’ day. mr dinesh wadhwa, Honorary secretary of the centre 
proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the programme.

Jabalpur

the chief guest mr nand Kumarum, 
managing director, madhya Pradesh 
Poorva Kshetra vidyut vitran 
company ltd. Jabalpur appreciated 
the work done by iei appealed 

to organize detailed workshop to usher the new theories and to perform 
research in association with east discom. mr alok dave, former general 
manager, rail coach factory, raibarely, dr dinesh chandra chaurasia, Past 
Honorary secretary of the centre and mr P rajagopalan, technical advisor, 
mumbai graced the occasion as the guests-of-Honour. mr rajagopalan 
delivered the keynote address on the theme. earlier, mr virendra Kumar 
sahu, chairman of the centre delivered the welcome address. mr tarun 
Kumar anand, Honorary secretary of the centre delivered speech on the 
theme. dr mukta bhatele conducted the programme and brig vipin Kumar 
trivedi proposed the vote of thanks.

Jamshedpur

mr dipankar sen gupta, Past chairman of the centre graced the occasion 
as chief guest. the Keynote 
speaker, mr Prateep misra, Head, 
technology & engineering and 
chief architect of tcs iot Platform 
– connected universe Platform 
(tcuP) spelt out about industries 
around the world are now facing 
substantial challenges due to 
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recent environmental, societal, economic and technological developments 
regarding disruptive concepts of internet of things, cyber Physical 
systems or cloud based manufacturing, which lead to the fourth stage 
of industrial revolution. ‘industry 4.0 is focused on creating intelligent 
products, processes and procedures that leads to ubiquitous connectivity of 
people, things and machines and this is likely to be adopted worldwide and 
it might influence other initiatives and cooperative efforts’, he added. earlier, 
mr avneesh gupta, chairman of the centre while delivering the welcome 
address, spoke about the importance of engineers day and introduced the 
theme of the day. on this occasion, mr neeraj Kant, managing director, 
iwc was Honoured with ‘distinguished engineers award’ and dr rekha 
chaudhary, Principal, maryland institute of technology, Jamshedpur was 
Honoured with ‘lady engineers award’. the function was concluded with 
vote of thanks proposed by Prof shalendra Kumar from nit Jamahsedpur.

Kalaburagi

the chief guest, mr subodha, Yadav, regional commissioner and secretary, 
Hyderabad Karnataka region development board Kalaburagi, in his address 
urged the gathering to serve the nation by devotion and dedication to duty 

for the nation. the guest-of-Honour, 
Prof H m maheshwaraiah, vice 
chancellor, central university of 
Karnataka, appealed all engineers to 
render their services for the cause of 
nation by following the foot-prints of 
sir m visvesvaraya. mr ashok Patil, 

assistant Professor, Pda college of engineering, Kalaburagi delivered the 
keynote address on the theme, briefing most important aspects. mr m m 
Kadadi, chairman of the centre presided over the function. dr shashikant r 
mise, Honorary secretary of the centre addressed the gathering, exhibiting 
the most illustrative projects and achievements of sir m visvesvaraya. mr 
J l shukla, immediate Past chairman of the centre proposed the vote of 
thanks.

Kanpur

the chief guest, Prof Yatindra 
nath singh, dean of infrastructure 
& Planning, iit Kanpur stated that 
digital transformation is essentially 
growth of connectivity, availability 
of cheaper computer devices, 
introduction of multilingual content and interfaces, leading to use of digital 
services by common men and this growth has given opportunities as well 
as challenges leading to emergence of new businesses and services. He 
further explained that new service industry has come up which maintains 
the resulting massive digital infrastructure. earlier, Prof d P mishra, 
chairman of the centre welcomed the chief guest and the other dignitaries 
present on the occasion. Prof Kumar vaibhav srivastava, chairman, ieee, 
uttar Pradesh section, presented a brief life sketch sir m visvesvaraya. Prof 
J ramkumar, immediate Past Honorary secretary of the centre proposed 
the vote of thanks.

Kanyakumari

the guest-of-Honour, dr t v s Pillai, dean, university college of engineering 
in his address, explained the hard tasks taken by sir m viswesvaraya. He 
further pointed out the town planning of madurai city, which was designed 

some 1000 years ago. the Keynote 
speaker, dr s arumuga Perumal of 
st Hindu college explained about 
internet of things (iot) and digital 
transformation. He elaborated how 
digital transformation playing a key 

role for a new industrial revolution. earlier, dr m edwin, Head, department 
of mechanical engineering delivered the welcome address. in his address, 
mr g sivasubramanian, chairman of the centre enumerated the great 

schemes such as, Krishna raja sahar dam constructed under the guidance 
of sir m viswesvaraya. mr v sivathanu Pillai, Honorary secretary of the 
centre proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the function.

Kharagpur

Prof s K roy, metallurgical & 
materials science engineering 
department, iit Kharagpur graced 
the occasion as the chief guest and 
addressed on the theme of the day. 
earlier, Prof o P sha, chairman of 
the centre, in his welcome address 
pointed out the contribution made 
by sir m visvesvaraya in the field of 
engineering in india and emphasized the importance of observing this day. 
Prof d maity, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks 
at the end of the programme.

Kochi

dr K francis Jacob, Principal general manager, bsnl inaugurated the 
ceremony as chief guest. dr Jacob, in his address, expressed that the 
new revolutionary change of information technology has started reaching 

the common man. mr Paul george, 
chairman of the centre welcomed 
the speaker and other dignitaries. 
mr K K gopalakrishnan nair made 
commemorative speech, explaining 
the life and achievements of sir m 
visvesvaraya as an engineer and 
administrator. mr t P raveendran, 

Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Kolhapur

mr Pratap Puranik, Propritor, Pratap 
Packaging Products, Kolhapur 
and managing director, minoo 
industries Pvt ltd, Kolhapur, graced 
the occasion as the chief guest 
and addressed the gathering.  dr 
amit andre, data scientist & senior vice Precident, vinsys it services, 
Pune delivered the Keynote address on the theme of the day. earlier, dr P 
v Kadole, chairman of the centre welcomed all the guests and dignitaries. 
mr manoj chavan, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of 
thanks at the end of the programme.

Kota

dr indramani mishra, icar- indian agricultural research institute, Pusa new 
delhi graced the occasion as chief guest and expressed that engineers should 

be honest, hard worker and dedicate 
to the nation. He further explained 
that in agriculture field, every work 
is doing with digital information and 
digital transformation for benefit of 
farmers. the guest-of-Honour, mr v 
K Jain, Project director, rawatbhata 
rajasthan site, nuclear Power 

corporation of india ltd. (nPcil), Kota expressed regarding the unit 5&6 of 
nPcil rawatbhata as based on digital transformation. another guest-of-
Honour, mr s P majumder, general manager from cesc, Kolkata highlighted 
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about the smart meter, which is based on digital transformation. the guest 
speaker, mr a K gupta, former managing director, Jaipur vidyut vitran 
nigam limited explained that those companies do not transform their way 
of doing business will eventually disappear. ‘it’s not about spending more on 
technology; it’s about how we use this technology to benefit our employees 
and our business’, he added. other guest speaker, mr g K sharma, additional 
director (it), govt. of rajasthan narrated that digitalization is a process of 
social renewal that offers immense scope for positive change and it isn’t 
limited to technology. mr o P saxena, council member, iei mentioned that 
engineering is a nobel profession and everybody should proud of it. ‘for 
development of india, engineers are doing so many innovations’, he added. 
earlier, mr c K s Parmar, chairman of the centre welcomed the guests and 
dignitaries present on the occasion. mr Jasamat singh, Honorary secretary 
of the centre extended vote of thanks.

Kozhikode

mr v K adarsh, senior manager (technical), union bank of india (nodal 
regional office), ernakulam elaborated on the theme and emphasized the 
need for digital transformation rather than translation. He mentioned the 

contributions of engineers like sam 
Pitroda, nandan nilkani etc. Prof 
K P mohandas, chairman of the 
centre, in his address, emphasized 
the need for dedicated sincere 
effort on the part of all engineers 
in Kerala in rebuilding the state. 
He briefly narrated life sketch of sir 

m visvesvaraya. earlier, mr Jithesh c, Honorary secretary of the centre 
welcomed the august gathering. mr santhosh, vice chairman, Kerala state 
electricity board engineers’ association proposed the vote of thanks.

Madurai

the chief guest, dr s natarajan, district collector, madurai, in his address, 
mentioned that the entire world is moving towards digital era. ‘from the 
days of radio, the world has moved 
to television, lcd tv, cell phone 
and i-phones and from computer 
application moved towards big 
data, simulation, virtual images etc. 
which has made industry a vertical 
integration’, he added. He further 
requested the engineers to apply 
this in engineering advancement in 
rain water harvesting and to save every drop of water. He stated that the 
desalting of all tanks is urgent necessity to improve the storage capacity 
and modernise the channel flow and quantify the usage correctly without 
any wastage. earlier, mr K vijayakumar, chairman of the centre delivered 
the welcome address. mr K chakrapany, Past chairman of the centre 
highlighted the contribution and achievements of sir m visvesvaraya from 
his biography. mr P rajamani, vice President, iei read out the engineers 
day Pledge and presented a memento to the chief guest. mr J samuel, 
Honorary secretary of the centre introduced the chief guest to the audience 
and proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the programme. 

Meerut

dr sanjeev Kumar sharma, director, JP institute of engineering and 
technology, meerut graced the occasion as chief guest and addressed 
the gathering. the Keynote speaker, Prof dinesh Kumar, Head, department 

of mechanical and industrial 
engineering, iit roorkee, in his 
address, explained the challenges, 
which the industries around the 
world are presently facing due to 

recent developments. ‘the fourth stage of industrial revolution is on the way. 

the conventional and traditional production concepts are being replaced by 
digitization’, he added. dr inderdeep singh explained the innovative Product 
design and manufacturing and said that the product life cycles are shrinking 
and gone are the days when a customer will use the same product for his 
life time. mr s K Kumar, former chief engineer of uP irrigation stated that 
the floods in Kerala were fury of nature but disaster was worsened by lack 
of climate forecast and warning system. earlier, mr s c govil, chairman 
of the centre welcomed the guests and dignitaries. mr rajneesh Kumar, 
Honorary secretary centre conducted the programme and proposed the 
vote of thanks.                 

Munirabad

mr b g eshwaralppa, former superintendent engineer graced the occasion 
as chief guest and addressed the gathering. the guest speaker, mr t 
nazeeruddin, Head, tmaes Polytechnic college explained about the role of 
engineers in the field of digital transformation and uses to be the industries 
in order to produce more products and profits with less investment adopting 
this technology. He further explained that the uses and benefits to the society 
and the facts & figures. mr rajashekhara gowd P, Honorary secretary of the 
centre welcomed the guests and proposed the vote of thanks at the end of 
the programme.

Nashik

dr ravinder Kumar singal, 
commissioner of Police, nashik 
and mr mahendra r Kothari, council 
member, iei graced the occasion 
as the chief guest and guest-of-
Honour respectively and addressed 
the gathering. mr santosh mutha, 

chairman of the centre welcomed the guests and dignitaries. mr vipul 
mehta, Joint secretary of the centre compared the programme. mr ajit Patil, 
Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Saurashtra

mr shirish Paliwal, Principal director, national Productivity council, 
gandhinagar, graced the occasion 
as chief guest and addressed the 
gathering. the theme speaker, 
dr Krunal n vaghela, assistant 
Professor, computer engineering department, marwadi university, rajkot, 
in his address stated that on a digital platform, industry 4.0 is applied with 
three mutually interconnected factors namely, digitalization and integration 
of any simple to complex technical commercial relation. digitalization of 
products and service offers new market models. He further presented 
detailed information about three principal approaches in industry 4.0 
concept mainly horizontal integration, vertical integration and integrated 
digital engineering. earlier, mr navin r Kalaria, Honorary secretary of the 
centre and Prof P H darji, c u shah university, wadhawan welcomed 
the august gathering. dr vedvyas dwivedi, Provost, c u shah university 
presided over the function. Prof veera darji, Head, mechanical engineering 
department, c u shah engineering college proposed the vote of hanks.

Silchar

mr nikhil ranjan choudhury, chairman of the centre, in his welcome 
address advised young engineers to follow the ideals of sir m visvesvaraya. 
the guest-of-Honour, mr Y K bansod, general manager, bsnl, silchar 

delivered the keynote address. 
another guest-of-Honor, mr m sri 
Jagannadh, deputy manager, star 
cement limited expressed his 
satisfaction the role of engineers 
in the development of the country. 
other dignitaries present on the 

occasion included Prof f a talukdar, Head, department of electronics & 
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telecommunication engineering, nit silchar and Prof sudipto roy of assam 
university and spoke on the theme of the day. mr d K Kundu, Honorary 
secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

South Gujarat

mr Hetal mehta, President, southern 
gujarat chambers of commerce 
& industry graced the occasion 
as chief guest and addressed the 
gathering. mr rohit Pandya, south 
gujarat regional technical Head, 
ultratecH presented a brief information of the workshop. dr d v bhatt 
and dr atul s shah graced the occasion with their valuable presence. 
earlier, dr P H tandel, chairman of the centre welcomed the guests and 
dignitaries. mr mukund master, Honorary secretary of the centre gave brief 
introductions of the esteemed guests with a brief summary of the workshop 
and proposed the vote of thanks at the end of the function. 

Sunabeda

Prof K ramji, vice chancellor, dr b r ambedkar university, srikakulam 
graced the occasion as the 
chief guest and addressed the 
gathering. mr asutosh mallick, 
general manager, engine division, 
Hindustan aeronautics ltd. (Hal), 

sunabeda, mr d K mohanty, executive director, nalco, damanjodi and 
mr debashis deb, executive director, Hal, Koraput graced the occasion 
as guests-of-Honour. Prof Pradipta Kumar nanda, dean (r&d), soa 
university, bhubaneswar delivered the Keynote address. earlier, mr Jitendra 
mohan sahu, chairman of the center delivered the welcome address to the 
gathering and presented a brief life sketch of sir m visvesvaraya. mr guru 
Prasad dash, Honorary secretary of the center briefed about activities of 
the center. mr sunil Kumar biswal, convener of the event proposed the vote 
of thanks.

Tiruchirappalli

the chief guest, dr bhimaraya 
metri, director, indian institute of 
management, tiruchirappalli, in his 
address, stated that the revolutions in 
the digital field created an imbalance 
in the industry.  ‘since the evolution 
of smart manufacturing or industry 
4.0, the topography of employable 
skills is changing, the new skill sets are becoming the order of the day’, 
he added. He highlighted that industry 4.0 leads to new opportunities for 
employment at the same time it disturbs existing jobs. ‘we are moving 
driverless cars and even there may be a situation where nobody will own a 
car but enjoy the luxury of a car by getting cars on demand’, he added. mr P 
raguraman, general manager, unit ii, bHel, tiruchirappalli, in his address 
stated that engineers play a very significant role in every walk of our lives 
and they convert theoretical knowledge of basic sciences into actual 
products and thus make our lives easy. earlier, mr r selvaraj, chairman of 
the centre welcomed the gathering. mr s lakshmanan, Honorary secretary 
of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Trichur

the chief guest, Prof sunil Kumar c P, former Head, govt. engineering 
college, thrissur in his address, 
threw light on how internet of 
things (iot),  cloud computing, 
artificial intelligence, machine 
learning etc. revolutionized the 
industry  through digital technology 
intervenes. ‘this has pragmatically 

given rise to 4th industrial revolution termed as industry 4.0’, he added. 
dr sunil Kumar further described digital infrastructure of india to march 
towards transforming the country to digital india. earlier, mr v damodaran, 
chairman of the centre presided over the function. mr sugathan u K, 
Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Tuticorin

the chief guest, mr K natarajan, 
chief engineer, tuticorin thermal 
Power station (ttPs) enumerated 
that team work shall always reap 
dividends. He further mentioned 
that sir m visvesvaraya has been 
a role model and guiding leader for 
thousands of employees of ttPs in 
ensuring sustained operation of power plant and nurturing the environment 
by planting more than a thousand five hundred trees within a year in the plant 
and residential areas. mr natarajan highlighted the excellent contribution of 
sir m viswesvaraya towards water conservation, drip irrigation and building 
of dams in various states and countries across the world. He emphasized that 
we must keep “service before self” and reach out to all in need by sharing 
our knowledge and resources. mr saravanan, assistant executive engineer, 
ttPs, speaking on the theme explained in depth the great achievements 
in digital transformation and the challenges encountered in every walk of 
life during digital transactions. mr s aribu sulthan, chairman of the centre 
welcomed the gathering and presided over the function. earlier, mr i maria 
michael raj, former senior scientific officer, department of atomic energy 
& convener of the event, introduced the chief guest. mr e Henson victoria, 
Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote of thanks.

Udaipur

the chief guest, mr ibrahim ali, former director (Projects), Hindustan 
Zinc ltd. emphasized on the quality 
education in engineering and briefed 
that for employment, industry 
desires quality engineers but many 
of the engineering college students 
have lesser knowledge to get proper 
employment. the Keynote speaker, 
mr Pankaj Kumar, coo (smelting 
operations), vedanta – Hindustan 

Zinc limited, udaipur, speaking on the theme shared his experience and 
stated that money transfer from mobile to bank account is latest example 
of digital transformation. mr anurodh Prashant, chairman of the centre 
welcomed the gathering and also highlighted about the theme and its 
importance. mr Y K bolia, Honorary secretary of the centre anchored the 
programme and proposed the vote of thanks.

Upper Assam

the chief guest, mr apurba Kumar sarma, executive director, eastern 
asset of oil, in his address, called upon all the engineers to discharge their 
duties in efficient and excellent way but not at the cost of the life supporting 
elements of the mother earth like air, soil, water and healthy environment. 
‘we have to serve the nation by considering the welfare of the stakeholders 
while we discharge our duties through various institutions, organizations in 
public or private domain’, he added. 
the guest-of-Honour, ms sukla 
mistry, cgm & unit Head, digboi 
refinery (iocl-aod) elaborated 
on the meaning of digitisation 
and its impact on the industries 
in the process of stage by stage 
up gradation. she further clarified 
that big data can bring big impact 
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by citing the examples. she stressed upon on the change of mind set of 
everybody concerned which will ultimately lead india a major users of digital 
transformation and will successfully reap the benefit of this fourth stage 
revolution. other guest-of-Honour, mr Hari Krishna changmai, general 
manager & Plant Head, agbPP¬neePco stated that the array of equipment 
and some health instruments used by doctors to detect the diseases are due 
to the contribution of engineers in the background. He called upon all the 
engineers to set the benchmarking at par with international level and to excel 
in their respective domain in the professional fronts. earlier, mr amitava 
dasgupta, chairman of the centre, in his welcome address, focused on the 
historic development of binary system, early digital computers, the history of 
the development of internet & the accelerated change and impact it brought 
in human society. He also highlighted the process of modern day’s digital 
transformation in the industries globally and in our civic & personal life and 
its impact on our society. He also talked about the three industrial revolution 
that mankind has seen & the fourth industrial revolution that mankind is 
going through presently. mr ramesh chandra das, Honorary secretary of 
the centre read out the life sketch of sir m visvesvaraya.

Varanasi

the chief guest, mr gyan Ptrakash 
Pandey, chief engineer, uPPwd 
(varanasi Zone) focused on the 
importance modern of digital and 
communication systems in various 
areas of engineering practice, 
particularly in the areas of infrastructure development, monitoring of the 
progress of the civil work and several related issues. He further stressed 
upon the era of ict where there is a need for better coordination between 

different agencies to reduce delays and project over runs currently being 
seen all around in various sectors. He enumerated that digital communication 
and information technology tools will go a long way in implementing and 
completing various developmental projects on time. the guest-of-Honor, 
mr alok Kumar mishra, general manager, bsnl, varanasi enlightened 
the gathering by enumerating on the role of 2g, 3g, and 4g based digital 
communication systems and how bsnl played a key role in extending the 
vast network of communication and digital systems that are not only helping 
common people by making their life a lot more easier but also various 
aspects of financial and industrial sectors across the country. He, however 
also cautioned that in spite of enumerable advantages this technology 
too has its own problems. earlier, Prof anil Kumar agrawal, chairman of 
the centre welcomed the guests and dignitaries. Prof Prabhas bhardwaj, 
Honorary secretary of the centre presented a brief report highlighting the 
activities of iei as well as of the centre. Prof siddh nath upadhyay, convener 
of the event proposed the formal vote of thanks.

oVERSEAS CHAPTER

Baharain

mr vivek Helwatkar, chairman 
of the chapter, delivered the 
welcome speech. mr rajiv Kumar 
singh spoke on the theme ‘digital 
transformation: a new industrial 
revolution’. mr ramit srivastava 
spoke on the topic ‘environment 
and green buildings’ and mr Pratap Kumar on the topic ‘remote sensing 
and gis systems’.
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Technological Advancements and 
Emerging Mining Methods

Dhanbad Local Centre of the institution in collaboration with 
csir-central institute of mining & fuel research (cimfr), 
dhanbad organized all india seminar on ‘technological 
advancements and emerging mining methods’ under the 
aegis of mining engineering division board of iei during 
august 24-25, 2018 at dhanbad. Her excellency, ms 
droupadi murmu, Hon’ble governor of Jharkhand graced the 
occasion as chief guest. Hon’ble governor, in her address 
stated that mining sector is very important for the growth 
of indian economy and it is very sensitive to environment 
during mining operations to make it sustainable. ‘for this, 
we need to develop technologies and also best practices to 
conserve our environment while continuing developmental 
activities and our state has shown considerable progress 
in all areas and it still has immense potential for further 
development’, she opined. she further enumerated that 
there is a need for mining sector is to produce clean energy 
and development of new technologies covering “mine-to-
market” i.e. exploitation-to-utilization of natural resources. further, Hon’ble 
governor also focused on creation of a conducive environment for industrial 
growth in india as a whole and in Jharkhand in particular. the guest-of-
Honour, mr P K sinha, chairman & managing director, northern coalfields 
ltd. highlighted the need for safety and productivity with conservation of 
mineral and environment especially related to deep opencast mines. earlier, 

dr P K singh, director, csir-cimfr, dhanbad welcomed the guests & 
dignitaries and highlighted the importance of the theme of the seminar. dr s 
K singh, organizing secretary of the event summarized about the technical 
details of the papers to be presented during the technical sessions of the 
seminar. dr K K singh, Honorary secretary of the centre proposed the vote 
of thanks at the end of the function.
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News-in-Brief
The following is a brief account of Technical Activities 
organised by various Centres and Overseas Chapter 
of the Institution

STATE CENTRES

Andaman & Nicobar

lecture on ‘non-structural Problems for structural engineers’ delivered by mr 
saprava bhattacharya, senior lecturer, school of civil engineering & surveying, 
university of Portsmouth, united Kingdom on august 27, 2018.

Bihar

seminar on ‘role of engineering in conservation of energy & environment’ on 
august 5, 2018.

Jharkhand

‘b K verma memorial lecture’ delivered by mr r K Pandey, member (Project), 
national Highways authority of india on July 21, 2018.

Karnataka

lecture on ‘solving traffic Problems of bangalore’ delivered by dr anilkumar P 
grampurohit, Police inspector, traffic Planning, bengaluru city on august 17, 2018

lecture on ‘cyber security & Penetration testing’ delivered by dr manish Kumar, 
assistant Professor, department of computer applications, m s ramaiah institute 
of technology, bengaluru on september 6, 2018.

organized 9th Prof satish dhawan commemoration lecture 2018 on the topic 
‘future fun’ delivered by mr c r sathya, senior vice President (technology), tata 
advance materials ltd. on october 6, 2018.

Kerala

lecture on ‘Key tips for Project success’ delivered by mr e J francis, retired group 
director, ccQg, vikram sarabhai space centre, thiruvananthapuram on september 
5, 2018.

lecture on ‘amphibious construction - a challenge to flood Prone areas’ 
delivered by mr nanma gireesh, government engineering college, barton Hill, 
thiruvananthapuram on september 12, 2018. 

lecture on ‘trends in logistics’ delivered by dr P ravikumar, associate director, 
intelligent transportation and networking section (itns), centre for development of 
advanced computing (c-dac) on september 19, 2018.

lecture on ‘Kerala – flood and after’ delivered by mr P abraham Paul, freelance 
consultant, ict & icn on september 26, 2018.

Punjab & Chandigarh

workshop on ‘advanced wireless communication and its implications’ during 
september 10-14, 2018.

Telangana

dr s raghavachari 4th endowment lecture on ‘road safety audit for improved traffic 
safety’ delivered by dr t s reddy, senior consultant, traffic and transportation, lea 
associates south asia Pvt. limited, new delhi   on  august 15, 2018.

‘mr maturi gopal rao’ 21st endowment lecture on ‘ndt applications in civil 
engineering’ delivered by Prof v bhikshma, department of civil engineering, 
university college of engineering, osmania university on september 10, 2018 

Uttar Pradesh

lecture on ‘reclamation on sodic land in uP’ delivered by mr s a Khan, retired 
executive engineer, uP irrigation department on september 15, 2018. 

LoCAL CENTRES

Anantapuram

lecture on ‘earth Quake resistance of reinforced concrete structures’ delivered by 
dr n venkata ramana, associate Professor, department of civil engineering, bdt 
college of engineering, davanegere on september 22, 2018.

Anpara

organized ‘royal charter day 2018’ on september 9, 2018.

Belapur

celebrated ‘world environment day’ on June 8, 2018.

lecture on ‘total Quality management – strategic approach’ delivered by mr r P 
mohanty, former vice chancellor, soa university, bhubaneswar and former vice 
President, acc, mumbai on June 12, 2018.

Faridabad

lecture meeting on ‘iot (internet of things) and ai (artificial intelligence)’ delivered 
by ms charu malhotra, ceo, taP- dc on september 4, 2018.

organized a technical Quiz on ‘battle of brains’ on september 5, 2018.

Gwalior

lecture on ‘water Quality: automated variation filtration (avf)’ delivered by mr 
vinay Kumar shukla on July 15, 2018.

observed ‘world nature conservation day’ on July 28, 2018.

celebrated ‘small industry day’ on august 30, 2018.

organized lecture meeting on ‘engineering management skills’ on september 2, 
2018.

celebrated ‘world ozone day’ on september 16, 2018.

Kalaburagi

lecture on ‘role and responsibility of engineers in society’ delivered by ms Pallavi 
biradar on august 30, 2018.

lecture on ‘enabling the Positive use of artificial intelligence for all’ delivered by 
Prof ashok Patil, assistant Professor, Pd college of engineering, Kalaburagi on 
september 4, 2018.

Palghat

organized technical visit to ‘navabharat system and devices Pvt. ltd, Kottakkal’ on 
september 22, 2018.

Rourkela

lecture on ‘the enchanting science of electrochemistry: corrosion to creation’ 
delivered by Prof archana mallik, department of metallurgical and materials 
engineering, nit rourkela on september 5, 2018.

Saurashtra

organized technical visit to ‘Pumping station – dhanki across saurashtra branch 
canal of sundar sarovar dam’ on september 19, 2018.

lecture on ‘Zero effect – Zero defect’ delivered by mr Jayen Kotcha on october 4, 
2018.

Tiruchirappalli

lecture on ‘Knowledge management for an engineering organization’ delivered by 
mr d senthil Kumar, senior manager, information technology solutions & services, 
bHel, trichy on september 11, 2018.

lecture on ‘smart grid Pilot Project’ delivered by mr n s suresh, research scholar, 
nit trichy on september 4, 2018.

Upper Assam

workshop on ‘good Practices of Plumbing’ on august 20, 2018.



Ninety-eighth  Annual General 
Meeting of The Institution of 
Engineers (India)

Proceedings
the 98th annual general meeting (agm) of the institution of engineers 
(india) was held at 1430 hrs on 23 dec 2017 at Hotel le royal meridien, 1 
gst road, st thomas mount, chennai, tamil nadu 600016. 

attended by 156 corporate members, the meeting was chaired by mr 
navinchandra b vasoya, fie, President of iei. the President welcomed the 
Past Presidents, President-elect and corporate members of iei present at 
the meeting.

the President announced that Jharkhand state centre and Hosur local 
centre of the institution of engineers (india) had been adjudged the 
best state centre and best local centre respectively for their all-round 
performance during the year 2016-2017. President presented the trophies 
of the best state and local centre awards, certificates and cheques of 
rs.50,000/- each to the chairmen of the centres.

the President, before taking up the agenda items, informed that during 
his tenure of office of the President, iei, the council took many important 
decisions for the best interest of the institution. He thanked the Past 
Presidents, council members and corporate members of the iei for 
extending their wholehearted support on all his activities during his 
tenure. He requested the council members and the corporate members 
for extending their wholehearted support to mr sisir Kumar banerjee, the 
incoming President, in all his endeavours.

thereafter, on being invited by the President, the secretary and director 
general read out the notice of the meeting published in november 2017 
issue of iei news.

ITEM 1 Confirmation of Minutes of the 97th Annual General Meeting 
held on 18 Dec 2016 at Kolkata

the minutes of the 97th annual general meeting held on 18 dec 2016 at 
Kolkata were circulated to all corporate members through mar 2017 issue 
[vol. 66, no.12, Page 5-7] of iei news. the same was recirculated in the 
nov 2017 issue [vol.67, no.8, Pages 11-13] of iei news along with the 
notice of the 98th annual general meeting. President invited comments 
on the minutes from the members present. dr g ranganath, fie proposed 
that the minutes of the 97th annual general meeting of the institution of 
engineers (india) held on 18 dec 2016 at Kolkata be confirmed.  mr suneel 
grover, fie seconded the proposal.

it was resolved that the minutes of the 97th annual general meeting of the 
institution of engineers (india) held on 18 dec 2016 at Kolkata be confirmed.

ITEM 2 To receive the Annual Report of the Council and the Audited 
Accounts of The Institution of Engineers (India) for the year ended 31 
March 2017

(a)      Annual Report

President invited comments from the members present on the annual 
report of the council for the year 2016-2017 as circulated. 

mr Kashmir lal mallik, fie then proposed that the annual report of the 
council for the year 2016-2017 be received.  dr g s mundada, fie seconded 
the proposal.

it was resolved that the annual report of the council for the year 2016-
2017 be received.

(b) Audited Accounts

President then invited comments on the audited accounts of the institution 
of engineers (india) for the year ended 31 mar 2017. 

dr s bhaumik, fie then proposed that the audited accounts of the institution 
of engineers (india) for the year ended 31 mar 2017 be received. mr a 
mukherjee, fie seconded the proposal.

it was thereafter resolved that the audited accounts of the institution of 
engineers (india) for the year ended 31 mar 2017 be received.

ITEM 3 To Receive the Report of the Council on Election of the 
President and Composition of the Council for the Session 2017-2018

the President announced that the council had duly elected mr sisir 
Kumar banerjee, fie as President of the institution of engineers (india) 
for the session 2017-2018.  the members welcomed the announcement.  
thereupon, mr sisir Kumar banerjee took over charge from mr navinchandra 
b vasoya and presided over the meeting. 

mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President presented the scroll of Honour to mr 
navinchandra b vasoya, immediate Past President.

mr sisir Kumar banerjee thanked the council and the members present for 
electing him as the President of the institution of engineers (india) and 
sought their help and guidance for further development of the institution. He 
then delivered his Presidential address. 

in his address, the President expressed that he was grateful to the council 
for having bestowed upon him the opportunity for serving the institution 
in this prestigious position.  it would be his endeavour to keep up the high 
standards set by his eminent and illustrious predecessors. 

He underscored the necessity of all round agricultural development with 
the application of innovations in the domain of science & technology and 
stressed that the development of ground water and surface water resources 
be looked upon as complementary activities to establish planned irrigation 
facilities ensuring intensive cultivation programme for meeting effectively 
the goal of making india self sufficient in the production of food grain for the 
entire population of the country. He considered it to be the biggest challenge 
before the engineers to ensure best development with least carbon footprint 
on the environment, creating environment-friendly, ecologically appropriate, 
energy saving developmental options - sustainable for the present as well 
as the emerging generations down the line. 

He highlighted the necessity of skill development enterprise in both 
public and private sectors, and mentioned of the recent planning and 
implementation by government of india of large scale infrastructure to help 
people to be trained in different spheres of technical jobs and applications, 
so as to fulfil the requirement of technically skilled manpower and to reduce 
the colossal scale of unemployment in the country. He marked it as an 
opportunity for iei to consolidate on its historical legacy and build further to 
contribute significantly to the cause of rapid economic development of the 
country through use of latest technologies and skilled manpower.  
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He assured of his constant focus on the members from all disciplines of 
engineering science and the technical student community in particular who 
are the strength and source of inspiration. regular communication with 
them, organizing more technical activities to ensure their participation and 
providing them additional benefits aimed at enhancing their professional 
knowledge would always be his constant effort. 

on being requested by mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President, the secretary 
and director general reported the following composition of the council for 
the session 2017-2018:

mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President

(1) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(a)(ii)

the following, by virtue of their being the two immediate Past Presidents, 
shall become members of the council for the session 2017-2018 :

 mr navinchandra b vasoya and

 mr H c s berry

(2) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(a)(iii)

the following corporate member has been declared elected to the council 
from the respective state centre seat for the sessions 2017-2018 to 2020-
2021 and shall be member of the council for the session 2017-2018: 

 Kerala :: mr v vijayachandran nair

the corporate members elected to the council from the following state 
centres shall continue as members of the council for the session 2017-
2018 :

Elected for the Sessions 2016-2017 to 2019-2020:

 andhra Pradesh :: dr K brahma raju

 delhi :: mr Pradeep chaturvedi

 gujarat :: mr sandeep b vasava

 Karnataka :: dr m chowde gowda

 maharashtra :: mr m b dagaonkar

 odisha :: dr nutan Kumar dash

 tamilnadu :: mr t m gunaraja

 telangana :: mr g sudhakar

 uttar Pradesh :: mr v b singh

Elected for the Sessions 2014-2015 to 2017-2018:

 bihar :: dr arun Kumar shrivastava

 Jharkhand :: mr a K saxena

 madhya Pradesh :: mr P P agarwal

 rajasthan :: dr s K calla

Elected for the Sessions 2015-2016 to 2018-2019

 Haryana :: mr K c sethi

 Punjab  and chandigarh :: mr a s bakshi

(3) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(a)(iv)

the following elected members from 15 divisional seats for the sessions 
2016-2017 to 2019-2020 shall become members of the council for the 
session 2017-2018 : 

 aerospace (1) :: Prof r m vasagam

 agricultural (1) :: mr d v nagabhushan

 architectural (1) :: mr H K mittal

 chemical (2) :: mr navinchandra b vasoya

   dr m P sukumaran nair

 civil (5) :: mr sisir Kumar banerjee

   mr Parminder singh bhogal

   mr H o thakare

   mr o P saxena

   mr narendra singh

 computer (2) :: mr b s Patel

   mr K rajanikanth 

 electrical (4) :: Prof Himansu bikas goswami

   mr mahendra ratanlal Kothari

   mr P rajamani

   mr r r tanwar 

 electronics & :: dr t s Kamal

 telecommunication (4)  dr (ms) gunnu Padmavathi

   mr b brahma reddy

   mr s c rudra 

 environmental (1) :: dr m velan 

 marine (1) :: dr K gopalakrishnan

 mechanical (5) :: dr swapan bhaumik

   dr wooday P Krishna

   mr enti ranga reddy

   mr Jagroop singh

   dr K venkatasubbaiah

 metallurgical & :: mr Kishore Kumar mehrotra
 materials (1)

 mining (1) :: mr d v Pichamuthu

 Production (1) :: dr deb Kumar tripathi

 textile (1) :: dr (ms) g thilagavathi

(4) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(b)(i)

by virtue of being elected as chairmen of the following state centres for the 
sessions 2017-2018 and 2018-2019 and installed at the annual general 
meeting of the respective state centres, the following persons shall become 
members of the council for its session 2017-2018:

 Haryana :: mr ajay mahajan

 Himachal Pradesh :: mr r K sharma

 tripura :: mr tapan lodh

 Punjab & chandigarh :: mr Janak raj garg
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further, chairmen of andhra Pradesh state centre and rajasthan state 
centre for their sessions 2016-2017 and 2017-2018, madhya Pradesh 
state centre and sikkim state centre for sessions 2017-2018 and 2018-
2019 shall become members of the council for the session 2017-2018 on 
their taking office at the ag meeting of the said state centres.

by virtue of being elected as chairmen of the following state centres for the 
sessions 2016-2017 and 2017-2018, following persons shall continue as 
members of the council for its session 2017-2018:

 andaman & nicobar :: mr d sathyamoorthy

 assam :: dr aswini Kumar baruwa 

 bihar :: mr ashok Kumar sinha 

 chhattisgarh :: mr Jagdish Prasad saboo 

 delhi :: mr devendra gill 

 goa :: mr g m n Parrikar

 gujarat  :: mr sandeep b vasava 

 Jammu & Kashmir :: mohammad ashraf fazili

 Jharkhand :: mr sanjay sen 

 Karnataka :: Prof (dr) n chikkanna 

 Kerala :: mr n rajkumar 

 maharashtra :: mr v s ghogare 

 manipur :: mr K temba singh

 meghalaya :: mr timothy dkhar

 odisha :: dr P K Parhi 

 Puducherry :: Prof (dr) Pajaniradja alias Kichena K

 tamilnadu :: dr g ranganath 

 telangana :: dr seeram satyanarayana 

 uttarakhand :: mr ranveer singh chauhan 

 uttar Pradesh :: Prof (dr) bharat raj singh 

 west bengal :: mr Kashmir lal mallik

(5) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(b)(ii)

by virtue of being elected as chairmen of the following local centres for the 
sessions 2017-2018 and 2018-2019, the following persons shall become 
members of the council for its session 2017-2018 :

 nashik :: mr santosh s mutha

 visakhapatnam :: mr o ram mohan rao

by virtue of being elected as chairmen of the following local centres for the 
sessions 2016-2017 and 2017-2018, the following persons shall continue 
as member of the council for its session  2017-2018 :

 belapur :: mr Jaswant navnitlal mistry 

 coimbatore :: dr s thangavelu

 durgapur :: mr raj Kumar roy

 ghaziabad :: dr (Prof) Hari shankar sharma 

 Kanchepuram :: dr r venkatesan

 Kochi :: mr n Paul george 

 ludhiana :: brig mastinder singh 

 madurai :: mr K vijaya Kumar 

 mysore :: mr m chinnaswamy

 nagpur :: dr dilip Prabhakar mase

 neyveli :: mr P selvakumar

 Pune :: dr g s mundada 

 south gujarat :: dr P H tandel

 vadodara :: mr ashitkumar J shah 

(6) Under provisions of Bye-Law 4(c)

following outstanding engineering personalities shall become members of 
the council for its session 2017-2018 as recommended by the committee 
of five members and approved by the council:

a. mr suneel grover, fie

 chief engineer, H P s e b ltd

 shimla, Himachal Pradesh

b. mr m K Jadav, fie

 secretary (water resources), narmada water resources

 water supply and Kalpsar department, government of gujarat

 gandhinagar, gujarat

c. mr a K mitra, fie

 chairman, technical advisory committee

 water resources department, assam secretariat

 dispur, guwahati, assam

d. mr abhai sinha, fie

 director general, central Pwd

 nirman bhawan, new delhi

(7) Under provisions of Bye-Laws 12(a) and 12(b)

the council shall co-opt appropriate corporate members as council 
members for the session 2017-18.

(8) Under provisions of Bye-Law 13

by virtue of being co-opted in the council for the sessions 2016-2017 and 
2017-2018, the following person shall become member of the council for 
its session 2017-2018:

mr s J desai vice mr sandeep b vasava, chairman, gujarat state centre

ITEM 4      To Appoint Auditors for the year 2017-2018 and to Fix their 
Remuneration

mr l venkatesan, fie proposed that m/s ray & ray, chartered accountants 
be appointed as auditors of the institution of engineers (india) for the year 
2017-2018 on a remuneration of rs.5,00,000 + taxes as applicable. mr 
tarun tapan lahiri, fie seconded the proposal.

it was resolved that m/s ray & ray, chartered accountants, be appointed 
as auditors of the institution of engineers (india) for the year 2017-2018 at 
a remuneration of rs.5,00,000+ taxes as applicable.

the meeting then concluded followed by the national anthem at 1515 hrs.
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the reports on the technical activities held under the auspices of various state/local 
centres of the institution during the year 2017-2018 have been circulated through 
these pages from time to time. the abridged versions of the institution’s balance 
sheet as at 31st march, 2018 along with the auditor’s report to the corporate 
members of iei are given hereunder. the detailed text of the above and also the 
annual report of the council are available on demand at all state/local centres/fora 
of iei including the overseas chapters and iei Headquarters.

The Institution of Engineers (India) 8 Gokhale Road, Kolkata 700 020

ABRIDGED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE INSTITUTION OF ENGINEERS (INDIA)

1. Report  on the Financial Statements

 we  have audited the accompanying financial statements of the institution of 
engineers (india), (“the institution”), which comprise of the balance sheet as at 
march 31st, 2018, signed by us under reference to this report and the related 
income and expenditure account and the cash flow statement for the year then  
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, in which have been incorporated the returns/accounts received 
from the various state centres and local centres (also collectively referred to 
as centres) of the institution for the year ended 31st march, 2018 as audited by 
other auditors and in some cases also for earlier years, and which have been 
relied upon by us, as mentioned in note 6.1 and 6.2 in schedule 13 except as 
indicated in paragraph 4 below.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

 management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows of the institution in accordance with the applicable accounting standards 
issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india and generally accepted 
accounting practices. this responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records and safeguarding the assets of the institution and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility

 our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit. 

 we conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing issued 
by the institute of chartered accountants of india. those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

 an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. the procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
in making those risk assessments, the auditor  considers internal financial 
control relevant to the institution’s preparation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence 
obtained by the other centre auditors’ in terms of their reports referred to in sub-
paragraph (a) of the other matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the financial statements.

4. Basis of Qualified Opinion

 our opinion is qualified in respect of the following matters and also in respect 
of observations of other auditors of the various centres upon whose report we 
have placed reliance:

 a) tds not deducted on some contractual payments in case of Jharkhand 
state centre, on labour charges to building contractor in case of ludhiana 
local centre and in some cases for bathinda local centre, the amount of 
which has not been reported by the centre auditors. tds return not filed 
in case of bihar state centre despite tds being deducted and deposited 
timely. there is a delay in remittance of tds in certain cases for Karnataka 
state centre and neyveli local centre.

 b) gst registration not taken in the case of madhya Pradesh state centre 
and andaman nicobar state centre. in case of assam state centre and 
telengana state centre gst registration taken by state centres but names 
of local centres not included. in case of  the ghaziabad local centre and 
the Palghat local centre names of these centres have not been included as 
additional place of business under the respective state centre registration.



 c) gst not collected/deposited regularly in the case of alwar local centre, 
dharwad local centre, ghaziabad local centre, Jabalpur local centre 
and bathinda local centre 

 d) note no 16 and note no. 30 of schedule 12 regarding fund misappropriation 
at Kanpur local centre and tiruchirapalli local centre respectively.

 e) note 1.10  in schedule 13 regarding accounting of certain income on 
cash basis, note 1.11 in schedule 13 regarding accounting of certain 
expense on cash basis, note 1.13 in schedule 13 regarding coverage of 
certain funds by investment.

5. Qualified Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation 
given to us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for 
Qualified opinion paragraph whose effect is not quantifiable, the financial statements 
give the information in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting standards generally accepted in india;

 5.1   in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the institution as 
at 31st march, 2018;

 5.2 in the case of the income and expenditure account, of the surplus for the 
year ended on that date; and

 5.3 in the case of the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

6. other  Matters

a) we did not audit the financial statements of 121 centres that are included in the 
financial statements of the institution, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets of rs.105,06,83,615/- as at 31st march, 2018 and total revenues of 
rs 16,22,02,279/- for the year ended on that date. the financial statements/ 
information of these centres have been audited by the other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these centres, is based solely 
on the report of such centre auditors. attention is also drawn to the following 
matters; 

b)    in case of dhanbad, Kanpur and vadodara local centres and those of tamil 
nadu and bihar state centres lease deeds have expired. lease deed of bhillai 
centre expired on 18th february,2003 and the centre had applied for renewal 
of the same. building of dhanbad centre has been seized by Zila Parishad.

c)     note no 10 of schedule 13 of the notes to accounts regarding final rejection 
by the cbdt of income tax exemption under section 35(1)(ii) of the income 
tax act.

d) note 11 of schedule 13 of the notes to accounts regarding review by all india 
council for technical education (aicte) of the section a & b examination of 
the 15 recognized engineering courses conducted by the institution and a bar 
on fresh enrolment with effect from 1st June, 2013 which has been stayed by 
the Honourable delhi High court.

e) report of other auditors of the various centres who have reported, inter-alia, 
on certain matters as mentioned in schedule 12.

 our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

 this report does not contain a statement on the matters specified by the 
companies (auditor’s report) order 2016 (‘the order’) issued by the central 
government of india in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the 
companies act 2013 as the said order is not applicable to  the institution.

8. We further report that,

 1. except for the effects of the matters disclosed in the basis of Qualified 
opinion paragraph herein above, we have obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of the audit; 

 2. except for the effects of the matters disclosed in the basis of Qualified 
opinion paragraph herein above, in our opinion proper books of accounts 
as required by law have been kept by the institution so far as appears 
from our examination of those books;

 3. the balance sheet, the statement of income and expenditure and the 
cash flow statement dealt with in this report are in agreement with the 
books of account and with the returns received from the centres not 
visited by us. 

 4. except for the effect of matters described in the basis of Qualified opinion 
paragraph herein above, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 

comply with the accounting standards issued by the institute of chartered 
accountants of india.

 5. the reports on the accounts of the centres audited by the various centre 
auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in 
preparing this report. 

 6. we further report that according to the information and explanation given 
to us:

 i. the institution has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on 
its financial position in its financial statements – refer note 2 of 
schedule 13 to the financial statements;

 ii. the institution did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there may be any material foreseeable 
losses;

for and on behalf of
RAY & RAY
chartered accountants
firm registration no. 301072e
K. K. Ghosh
Partner
membership no. 59781
Place: Kolkata
date: 14th, september, 2018

ANNEXURE To AUDIToRS REPoRT REFERRED To IN PARAGRAPH 6 oF oUR 
REPoRT To THE MEMBERS oF THE INSTITUTIoN oF ENGINEERS (INDIA) oN 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2018 (BASED oN 
THE REPoRT oF oTHER AUDIToRS)

SCHEDULE-12

1. AGRA LOCAL CENTRE:

 rent agreement on plain paper .lease deed not executed.

2. ALWAR LOCAL CENTRE:

 gst not collected/deposited regularly.

3. ASSAM STATE CENTRE:

 fixed asset register is under updation.

 gst registration taken by state centre but names of local centres  is not 
included as an additional place of business.

4. AURANGABAD LOCAL CENTRE:

 there is a contingent liability in respect of construction of building but the 
amount has not been ascertained.

5. BHILAI LOCAL CENTRE:

 lease deed expired on 18/02/2003. the lease was taken from sail bhillai.
renewal pending. 

 no fixed asset register maintained.

6. BIHAR STATE CENTRE:

 application for renewal of lease deed filed with appropriate authority and is in 
process.

 no tds return filed though tds deducted and deposited timely.

7. BATHINDA LOCAL CENTRE:

 tds not deducted in some cases.

 not gst compliant.

8. COIMBATORE LOCAL CENTRE:

 balance in savings bank account to be considered for transfer to fixed deposit 
since it has been lying for a long time.

9. DHANBAD LOCAL CENTRE:

 building of the centre was sealed by the dhanbad Zila Parishad based on 
the order of the Jharkhand High court. the centre is contesting the order for 
reopening of the office building. 

 a suit has been filed by the dhanbad Zila Parishad against which liability has not 
been ascertained.

 lease deed expired.

 fixed deposit includes interest amount and not shown at cost.

10. DHARWAD LOCAL CENTRE:

 gst not been collected on rs. 2701/-.

18 the e-ed i t ion  is  ava i lab le  a t  www. ie ind ia .org
november, 2018



19the e-ed i t ion  is  ava i lab le  a t  www. ie ind ia .org
november, 2018

11. GHAZIABAD LOCAL CENTRE:

 inclusion of name as additional place of business could not be verified under 
gst registration.

 no gst charged/levied on any of the eligible receipts. However, rs. 9180/- has 
been remitted to uP state centre against output gst liability arising on account 
of some receipts.

12. JABALPUR LOCAL CENTRE:

 fixed asset register is very old and is in torn out condition and a new register is 
being prepared.

 old advances not yet adjusted or recovered and no provision made for the 
irrecoverable advances.

 in the case instituted by mr. Kailash sen before presiding officer labour court 
the institute has raised preliminary objections but an ex parte order was issued 
on 11.01.2016. against this institute has filed an application on 26.02.2016 for 
setting aside the order. the order was set aside and case adjourned for further 
proceedings. case is under process and amount of liability not yet ascertained.

 gst not deducted on receipts from sponsorship/advertisement aggregating 
rs.481500/-. gst amount rs. 70,826/-which is to be deposited.

 no gst registration taken by state centre.

13. JAMSHEDPUR LOCAL CENTRE:

 title deed not yet made since lease to tisco not yet settled by state government.

14. JHARKHAND STATE CENTRE.

 tds not deducted on some contractual payments.

15. JODHPUR LOCAL CENTRE:

 in respect of Jodhpur local centre there was a contingent liability amounting 
to rs. 843,284/- for land and building tax against which rs. 72,650 /-had been 
deposited by the institution. 

16. KANPUR LOCAL CENTRE:

 rs. 245,000/- in other assets recoverable represents and relates to 
embezzlement of rs.3,21,527/- by way of  fraudulent encashment of fixed 
deposit receipts and withdrawal of cash from a savings bank account during 
the years 2000-01 and 2001-02 for which litigation is pending. out of this 
rs.11,000/- recovered. rs.65,527/- has been written off during the year 2010-
11 vide management decision in their meeting dated 20/02/2011. 

 lease deed expired on 26/10/2017 and under renewal process.

17. KARNATAKA STATE CENTRE:

 suits are filed against the centre for which the amount is not ascertainable.

 delay in remittance of tds.

18. KERALA STATE CENTRE:

 in case of fixed deposits an amount of rs.25,273.44/- has been noted as 
difference between maturity amount and reinvested amount . this is included 
under cash and bank balance as tds on fixed deposit. it is recommended that 
this amount(tds) should either be refunded to the state centre or written off.

 a demand of rs.3,22,38,652/- has been raised for lease rent against which a 
case was filed and subsequently a stay order was issued vide no wP( c )no 
18931/2016(n) dated 29th august 2016.

19. KOCHI LOCAL CENTRE:

 rs. 50,770/- for souvenir advertisement charges lying in receivables for a long 
time.

20. LUDHIANA LOCAL CENTRE:

 mr. Hardeep singh, peon cum chowkidar resigned w.e.f 19/11/2007 but there 
was a dispute regarding his resignation and arrears. the case is still pending 
in court. further an amount of rs. 2,000/- is still recoverable from him out of         
rs. 5,000/- given to him as advance.

 default in compliance of provisions of tds. tds not deducted on labour 
charges to building contractors and some payments to catering contractors .

 institute is maintaining a cash balance of rs.11,945/- as on 31.03.2018 
against prescribed limit of rs.100/-.

 fixed asset register maintained but not as per specified format.

21. MANGALORE LOCAL CENTRE:

 the property has been surrendered to the lessor. the new mangalore Port 
trust, the owner of the land has appropriated the value of the building towards 

the arrears of land rent claimed by nmPt retrospectively from 01/10/1991 
to 31/08/2011. the centre has handed over the lease land back to nmPt on 
13/08/2010 as per the charge list dated 13/08/2010 confirmed by the estate 
officer. the centre has moved the court of law against the demand raised by 
nmPt by an order under sub section (1) and (2a) of section 7 of the Public 
Premises (eviction of unauthorised occupants) act 1971 dated 06/04/2016 
for arrears of rent amounting to rs.18,94,056/-., was contended as erroneous 
by the iei mangalore local centre and a miscellaneous appeal no. 6/2016 was 
preferred in the court of iv additional district and sessions Judge dakshina 
Kannada, mangalore. the Honourable court has disposed off the appeal 
favouring the iei, mangalore local centre by and order dated 12.02.2018 and 
the order of the estate officer mentioned above has been set aside. the court 
has opined that the iei mangalore local centre is at liberty to approach the 
competent court for the recovery of rs.9,36,000/- from the new mangalore 
Port trust.

22. MYSORE LOCAL CENTRE:

 a suit has been filed in High court by an ex-employee, the quantum for which 
is not ascertainable.

23. NASHIK LOCAL CENTRE:

 the centre has rs.4,29,350/- balance as unadjusted advance with nashik 
municipal corporation.

24. NEYVELI  LOCAL CENTRE:

 delay in depositing tds and filing return.

 non provision of carrying value of “missing draft” which is appearing in the 
accounts as receivable for over 3 years.

25. PALGHAT LOCAL CENTRE:

 state centre has taken registration under gst but not added Palghat till date.

26. PUNE LOCAL CENTRE:

 fixed asset register in tally to be updated to reconcile with general ledger.

27. ROORKEE LOCAL CENTRE:

 advance given to Professor P P agarwal amounting to rs.50,000/- on 
14.01.2016 is still outstanding.

 savings bank account in Pnb has become inoperative and balance of                     
rs. 124,909/- has been transferred to deaf account of rbi. efforts should be 
made to regularise the account.

28. TAMILNADU STATE CENTRE:

 lease deed has expired.

29. TELENGANA STATE CENTRE:

 names of local centres not included in gst registration and it was informed that 
local centres have not provided valid proof of address.

 the state centres committee has decided to withdraw the interest on fixed 
deposits on quarterly basis leaving principal balance as deposit. this is against 
the practice previously adopted.

30. TIRUCHIRAPPALLI LOCAL CENTRE:

 rs. 8,99,183/- shown in the asset side of the balance sheet represents amount 
recoverable from mr m sreekanniyan. 

31. TIRUNELVELI LOCAL CENTRE:

 annexure iii not attached.

32. UTTAR PRADESH STATE CENTRE:

 following cases against the institution pending since long are as follows:

 - m/s d n brothers for labour charges since 1976.

 - m/s ramjas ramdayal for material supply since 1976

 - institution vs mahapalika  for review of assessment since 1992.

33. VADODARA LOCAL CENTRE:

 service tax applicable on renting of auditorium. but trust not able to find 
its trust deed required for filing application with service tax authorities for 
obtaining service tax number. the service tax due on auditorium charges will be 
paid once service tax number is obtained.

 lease deed expired in fY 2013. fresh application made for renewal of lease 
deed but confirmation still pending.



IEI DIARy
Aerospace Engineering Division

all india seminar on “Bluff Body Aerodynamics”
Kolkata, January 18-19, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, west bengal state 
centre, 8 gokhale road, Kolkata 700020 [(: 
(033)22238914; fax: (033) 22233140; e-mail: 
wbsc@ieindia.org]

all india seminar on “Emerging Trends in 
Aircraft Structure Materials”
Pune, february 16-17, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Pune local 
centre, abhiyanta bhavan, 1332, J m road, 
shivajinagar, Pune 411005, maharashtra [(: 
020-25533376 / 25520239 / 25530150; 
e-mail: punelc@ieindia.org]

thirty-third national convention of aerospace 
engineers on “Emerging Technologies 
in Aerospace Structures, Materials and 
Propulsion System”
Pune, november 15-16, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Pune local 
centre, abhiyanta bhavan, 1332, J m road, 
shivajinagar, Pune 411005, maharashtra [(: 
020-25533376 / 25520239 / 25530150; 
e-mail: punelc@ieindia.org]

thirty-fourth national convention of aerospace 
engineers on “Advances in Aerospace 
Engineering”
Kanpur, november 9-10, 2020
the Honorary secretary, iei, Kanpur local 
centre, engineers bhawan, Hbti east campus, 
nawabganj, Kanpur 208002 [telefax: (0512) 
2560034; e-mail: kanpurlc@ieindia.org]

Agricultural Engineering Division

national conference on “Agricultural 
Engineering Interventions for Sustainable 
organic Hill Farming”
gangtok, february 1-2, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, sikkim state 
centre, first floor, north academic block, 
central agricultural university campus, 

college of agricultural engineering & Post 
Harvest technology, ranipool 737135 [e-mail: 
sikkimsc@ieindia.org]

international conference on “Role of 
Agricultural Engineering towards Global Food 
Security”
bangalore, april 11-13, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Karnataka state 
centre, 3, dr b r ambedkar veedhi,  bangalore 
560001 [(: (080) 22264698; telefax: (080) 
22256191; e-mail: karnatakasc@ieindia.org; 
website: www.ieiksc.org]

thirty-third national convention of agricultural 
engineers on “Commercial Crops Processing 
and Value Addition”
agartala, august 10-11, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, tripura state 
centre, Pandit nehru complex, near tripura 
Housing board, P. o. Kunjaban, Pb no 139, 
agartala 799 006 [(: 0381-2304700; fax:  
0381-2304700; e-mail:  tripurasc@ieindia.org]

Architectural Engineering Division

international conference on “Architectural 
Innovations: Engineering, Technology and 
Materials”
Kolkata, november 27-29, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, west bengal state 
centre, 8 gokhale road, Kolkata 700020 [(: 
(033)22238914; fax: (033) 22233140; e-mail: 
wbsc@ieindia.org]

all india seminar on “Structural Aspects of 
Architectural Engineering”
Jaipur, december 29-30, 2018
the Honorary secretary, iei, rajasthan state 
centre, gandhi nagar, tonk road, Jaipur 
302015 [(: 0141-2706327; telefax: 0141-
2700413; e-mail: rajasthansc@ieindia.org]

workshop on “Real Estate Regulatory 
Authority (RERA)”
goa, January 18-20, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, goa state centre, d 
type Quarters, d-8-1, government Polytechnic 
campus, altinho, Panaji, goa 403001 [(: 

0832-2434686; e-mail: goasc@ieindia.org; 
website: www.ieigoasc.org]

Chemical Engineering Division

one day seminar on “Applications of Nano 
Materials in Chemical Engineering”
Kanchepuram, december 21, 2018
the Honorary secretary, iei, Kanchepuram local 
centre, agni college of technology – act, old 
mahabalipuram road, thalambur, chennai 
600130 [e-mail: kanchempuramlc@ieindia.org]

all india seminar on “Treatment of Sewage 
Water for Irrigation Purpose”
bhopal, January 05 – 06, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, madhya Pradesh 
state centre, m visvesvaraya marg, Po: 
Habibganj, bhopal 462024 [(: 0755-250577/ 
2502987; e-mail: mpsc@ieindia.org; website: 
www.mpsciei.org]

thirty-fifth national convention of chemical 
engineers on “The Food-Energy-Water (FEW) 
Nexus- Challenges for Chemical Engineers”

guwahati, september 06-07, 2019

the Honorary secretary, iei, assam state centre, 
Panbazar overbridge, east lane, guwahati 781001 
[(: 0361-2548742; fax: (0361) 2630368; 
e-mail: assamsc@ieindia.org; website: ieiasc.
org]

Civil  Engineering  Division

one day seminar on “Development of Rural 
Sector : Inclusive Approach through Advanced 
Technologies”
solapur, december 13, 2018
the Honorary secretary, iei, solapur local 
centre, vastu vaibhav, 3, north Kasaba, 
4th floor, near laxmi bank, shivaji chowk, 
solapur 413 001 [(: 0217-2727707; e-mail: 
solapurlc@ieindia.org]

Electrical  Engineering  Division

one day seminar on “Robotics Monitoring of 
Power Systems”
salem, January 01, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, salem local centre, 
3rd floor, sPc bhawan no. 104/7, manivannan 
street, opp to salem new bus stand, salem 
636004 [Ph. 0427 2332544; e-mail: salemlc@
ieindia.org]
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one day workshop on “Basics of Surface 
Modelling Using CATIAV5”
solapur, february 23, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, solapur local 
centre, vastu vaibhav, 3 north Kasaba, 
4th floor, near laxmi bank, shivaji chowk, 
solapur 413001 [(: 0217 2727707; e-mail: 
solapurlc@ieindia.org]

thirty-fifth national convention of mechanical 
engineers, on “Trends and Developments in 
Automotive Industry”
Hosur, september 13-14, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Hosur local 
centre, no.69, Kamaraj nagar, Kumudepall, 
near adhiyamaan college of engineering, 
tamilnadu, Hosur 635109 [e-mail: hosurlc@
ieindia.org]

thirty-sixth national convention of mechanical 
engineers, on “Innovations in Thermal Science 
and Engineering”
agartala, september 05-06, 2020
the Honorary secretary, iei, tripura state 
centre, Pandit nehru complex, near tripura 
Housing board, P. o. Kunjaban, Pb no 139, 
agartala 799 006 [(: 0381-2304700; fax: 
0381-2304700; e-mail:  tripurasc@ieindia.org]

Metallurgical & Mater. Engg.  Division

thirty-second national convention of 
metallurgical & materials engineers on 
“Advances in Engineering Materials for 
Sustainable Development”
Jamshedpur,  January 18-19, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Jamshedpur local 
centre, subarnarekha link sakchi, Jamshedpur 
831 001 [(: 0657-2234316; fax: 0657-
2230159; e-mail:  jamshedpurlc@ieindia.org]

international conference of metallurgical 
& materials engineers on “Synthesis, 
Characterization and Application of 
Nanomaterials (SCAN)”
Kolkata, november 01-03, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, west bengal state 
centre, 8 gokhale road, Kolkata 700020 [(: 
(033)22238914; fax: (033) 22233140; e-mail: 
wbsc@ieindia.org]

Mining  Engineering  Division

thirtieth national convention of mining 
engineers on “Trends and Developments in 
Mining Industry for Encouraging Investment”

Hosur, december 07-08, 2018
the Honorary secretary, iei, Hosur local centre, 
no.69, Kamaraj nagar, Kumudepall, near 
adhiyamaan college of engineering, tamilnadu, 
Hosur 635109 [e-mail: hosurlc@ieindia.org]

Production  Engineering  Division

thirty-fifth national convention of Production 
engineers on “Emerging Technologies in Power 
Sector Equipment Manufacturing”
tiruchirappalli, may  25-26,  2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, tiruchirappalli local 
centre, bHel main office road, tiruchirappalli 
620014 [(: 0431-2554285; fax: 0431-
2520383/2520775; e-mail: tiruchirappallilc@
ieindia.org]

Textile  Engineering  Division

thirty-second national convention of textile 
engineers on “Technology Innovations and 
Value Added Products in Textile Supply Chain”
coimbatore, January 04-05, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, coimbatore local 
centre, Psg college of technology campus, 
Peelamedu, coimbatore 641004 [(: 0422-
2580733; e-mail: coimbatorelc@ieindia.org]

Interdisciplinary

one day seminar on “Role of Engineers in 
Development of Technologies for a better 
Quality of Human Life”
ranchi, december 09, 2018
the Honorary secretary, iei, Jharkhand state 
centre, engineers bhawan, nepal Kothi campus, 
doranda, ranchi 834002 [(: 0651-2491334; 
e-mail: jharkhandsc@ieindia.org; website: www.
ieijsc.org]

all india seminar on “Problem of Mechanization 
in Sand Mining and Methodologies to be 
adopted for Environmentally Sustainable 
Mining of Sand from Rivers”
ranchi, January 12-13, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Jharkhand state 
centre, engineers bhawan, nepal Kothi campus, 
doranda, ranchi 834002 [(: 0651-2491334; 
e-mail: jharkhandsc@ieindia.org; website: www.
ieijsc.org]

all india workshop on “Application of Power 
Electronics in Electrical Systems”
chandigarh, January 15-16, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Punjab & 
chandigarh state centre, sector 19a madhya 
marg, chandigarh 160 019 [(: 0172-
2775418; fax:  0172-2540133; e-mail:  pcsc@
ieindia.org]

Electronics & Telecom.  Engg.  Division

thirty-fifth national convention of electronics 
& telecommunication engineers on 
“Mechatronics: Bridge between Technologies”
Pune, november 23-24, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Pune local 
centre, abhiyanta bhavan, 1332, J m road, 
shivajinagar, Pune 411005, maharashtra [(: 
020-25533376 / 25520239 / 25530150; 
e-mail: punelc@ieindia.org]

Environmental  Engineering  Division

thirty-fifth national convention of environmental 
engineers on “Green Technology for Clean & 
Green India”
bangalore, august 17-18, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, Karnataka state 
centre, no. 3, dr. b r ambedkar veedhi, 
bangalore 560001 [(: 080-22264698; 
telefax: 080-22256191; e-mail: karnatakasc@
ieindia.org; www.ieiksc.org]

all india seminar on “Solid Waste Management: 
An Industrial Perspective”
bokaro steel city, september 21-22, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, bokaro steel 
city local centre, abhiyanta bhawan, sector 
v-a, bokaro steel city 827006 [(: 06542-
267227/288972; e-mail: bokarolc@ieindia.
org]

Mechanical  Engineering  Division

all india seminar on “Gateway of FEA in 
Mechanical Design”
madurai, January 04-05, 2019
the Honorary secretary, iei, madurai local 
centre, er t m Jambulingam bhavan, no. 1, 
vivekananda nagar, 120 feet road, surveyor 
colony, K Pudur, madurai 625007, [(: 0452 
4373067; e-mail: madurailc@ieindia.org]
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One Day Seminars/Workshops Conducted by 
Various Centres of IEI

STATE CENTRES

Delhi
delhi state centre of the 
institution of engineers 
(india) in association with 
bureau of indian standards 
(bis) organized workshop 
on ‘fire and life safety 
Provisions in nbc 2016’ 
under the aegis of civil 
engineering division of 

iei on July 7, 2018 at new delhi. mr rakesh agrawal, engineer-in-chief, 
Public works department, govt. of nct of delhi graced the occasion as 
chief guest and mr H s dogra, former director general (works), cPwd 
& chairman, civil engineering division council, bis graced the occasion 
as guest-of-Honour. other dignitaries present on the occasion included, 
mr sanjay Pant, director & Head (civil engineering), bis, dr g c misra, 
director, delhi fire services, govt. of nct of delhi, mr d K shami, fire 
advisor, ministry of Home affairs, govt. of india and mr s K dheri, former 
cfo, delhi fire services & convener, bis Panel on fire of nbc.

Gujarat 
gujarat state centre of the 
institution organized a one 
day workshop on the theme 
‘internet of things (iot)’ 
under the aegis of electronics 
& telecommunication 
engineering division of iei 
on september 1, 2018 at 
ahmedabad. mr n b vasoya, 
immediate Past President of iei graced the function as chief guest during 
inaugural session. dr Kushwah, senior scientist, space application centre 
and Prof J v dave, former Principal, govt. engineering college, gandhinagar 
were present as guests-of-Honour.

Jharkhand
Jharkhand state centre of 
the institution organized 
a one day workshop on 
‘expanding the role of 
women in stem (science, 
technology, engineering & 
medicine) field’ under the 
aegis of interdisciplinary 

coordination committee (icc) of iei on september 14, 2018 at ranchi. ms 
Kamakshi raman, executive director (Hrd), sail – mti graced the occasion 
as chief guest. ms amita banerjee, Joint general manager (sail – Project 
consultancy), mecon and dr vandana bhattacharjee, Head, department 
of computer science, bit mesra graced the function as guests-of-Honour.

Tripura
tripura state centre of the institution organized in association with disaster 
risk management (drm) committee of world federation of engineering 
organisation (wfeo), tripura disaster management authority and national 

institute of technology 
agartala organized one day 
seminar on ‘disaster: it’s 
Preparedness, mitigation 
and capacity building’ under 
the aegis of civil engineering 
division of iei on august 
3, 2018 at agartala. 
mr narendra chandra 
debbarma, Hon’ble minister 

for revenue and fisheries departments, tripura graced the occasion as 
chief guest. mr ashok Kumar basa, chairman, drm committee, wfeo and 
Past President, iei graced the seminar as special guest. 

LoCAL CENTRES

Ahmednagar
ahmednagar local centre of 
the institution in association 
with shri chhatrapati 
shivaji maharaj college 
of engineering, nepti, 
ahmednagar organised 
one day workshop on 
‘ferrocement technology’ 
under the aegis of civil 
engineering division of iei on september 25, 2018 at ahmednagar. mr 
chandramohan Hangekar, President, ferrocement society of india and former 
chief engineer, water resources department, government of maharashtra 
graced the occasion as chief guest and addressed the inaugural session. 
dr r s deshpande, Principal, shri chhatrapati shivaji maharaj college of 
engineering and convener of the event delivered welcome address.  

Bhimavaram
bhimavaram local centre of 
the institution in association 
with department of 
mechanical engineering 
of sir c r reddy college 
of engineering (crrcoe), 
eluru organized one day 
workshop on ‘evolution of 
the automotive interiors’ 

under the aegis of mechanical engineering division of iei on october 23, 
2018 at bhimavaram. mr n v K durga rao, secretary, sir crr educational 
institutions graced the occasion as chief guest. other dignitaries present 
on the occasion included, Prof K venkateswara rao, Head, department of 
mechanical engineering, crrcoe and Prof g samba siva rao, Principal, 
crrcoe.

Madurai
madurai local centre of 
the institution organized 
one day workshop on 
‘revisions of national 
building code -2016’ on 
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Notification for

R&D Grant-in-Aid (2018-19)

to promote appropriate technology, assist in building up design & 
research talents and, most importantly, to help in nurturing potential 
r&d venture amongst engineering students pursuing diploma/ug/Pg/
Ph. d courses, the institution of engineers (india) had instituted the 
r&d grant-in-aid program way back in 2001.

like every year, the institution invites applications for the session 
2017-2018 for funding industry-oriented r&d projects and research 
initiatives aimed at improving the life-style of common people from 
engineering students pursuing diploma/ug/Pg/Ph. d courses. the 
application form and guidelines are available in our website https://
www.ieindia.org. the projects should be carried out under the guidance 
of faculty members who are corporate members (amie/mie/fie) of iei. 
membership criteria for students are as follows:

Project Category Student/Applicant 
Membership

1.  diploma not mandatory. membership of 
student chapter is desirable

2. ug (be/b. tech/amie/
equivalent)

Preferably ‘student member’ 
(smie)

3. Pg (me/m. tech/equivalent) should be ‘corporate member’

4. Ph. d should be ‘corporate member’

the soft copy of the duly filled-up applications (in editable format), as 
per the given proforma, should be sent through email to research@
ieindia.org and one printed copy of the same, duly sealed and signed 
should reach the following address:

director (technical)
the institution of engineers (india)
8 gokhale road, Kolkata 700 020

applications received in format other than that available on our website 
will not be accepted. application should be forwarded through the 
guide, Head of the department or Head of the institution. Please 
note that preference will be given to project proposals received from 
institutions who are members of the institution of engineers (india). 
Kindly go through the guidelines (visit link https://www.ieindia.org/
webui/iei-activities.aspx#rnd-initiative)carefully before filling up the 
application.

the grant is not intended for the faculty members who have access 
to other avenues of research funding. Proposals received will be 
scrutinized and the recipients of r&d grant will be informed accordingly.

august 25, 2018 at madurai. Prof v muthu, former Professor, thiagarajar 
college of engineering, madurai, graced the occasion as chief guest. ms 
g bhavani, scientist d & Hallmarking officer, bureau of indian standards 
(bis) inaugurated the workshop. mr P rajamani, vice President of iei also 
attended the function with his august presence.

Salem

salem local centre of the 
institution in association 
with the department of 
mechanical engineering, 
narasus sarathy institute 
of technology, salem, 
tamilnadu organized one 
day seminar on ‘nano 
technology for industrial 
applications’ under the aegis of Production engineering division of iei on 
august 2, 2018 at salem. dr v munusami, Principal, narasu’s sarathy 
institute of technology, salem delivered the Presidential address.

Visakhapatnam

visakhapatnam local 
centre of the institution in 
association with rinl, vizag 
steel Plant, visakhapatnam, 
organized one day workshop 
on ‘cost control’ under the 
aegis of interdisciplinary 
coordination committee 

(icc) of iei on august 29, 2018 at visakhapatnam. 

visakhapatnam local centre of the institution in association with rinl, vizag 
steel Plant, visakhapatnam, 
organized one day 
workshop on ‘conveyor 
belt maintenance and safety 
aspects’ under the aegis 
of mechanical engineering 
division of iei on september 
24, 2018 at visakhapatnam. 
mr c tirkey, assistant general manager (training), rinl, vizag steel Plant 
graced the occasion as chief guest and addressed the gathering.

visakhapatnam local centre of the institution in association with rinl, 
vizag steel Plant, visakhapatnam, organized one day workshop on ‘basics 

of mechanical maintenance 
& safety aspects’ under 
the aegis of mechanical 
engineering division of iei 
on october 22, 2018 at 
visakhapatnam. mr cvsP 
varma, assistant general 
manager (training), rinl-
vizag steel Plant graced the 

occasion as chief guest and addressed the gathering.

Superannuation from IEI
mr somnath chaudhury, an employee of the 
institution HQ will be superannuated from the 
services of iei on november 30, 2018. He joined 
the institution on July 21, 1992 and rendered his 
services to the institution for a period of over 26 
years.

iei wishes mr somnath chaudhury and his family 
a happy and healthy life in future.
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President’s Visit to
Tiruchirappalli Local Centre

mr sisir Kumar banerjee, President, iei visited tiruchirappalli local centre for unveiling of foundation stone for library of the 
centre on august 30, 2018 in presence of mr P rajamani, vice President, iei, mr r raja manohar, executive director, bHel 
trichy,  mr r selvaraj, chairman and mr s lakshmanan, Honorary secretary.


